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OJSC NK BANK

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE PREPARATION AND APPROVAL
OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

Management is resbonsible for the preparation of the financial statements that present fairly the financial
position of Open Joint Stock Company NK Bank (the “Bank”) as of 31 December 2012, and the results of
its operations, cash flows and changes in shareholders’ equity for the year then ended, in compliance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (*IFRS").

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for:

Selecting suitable accounting policies and applying them consistently,

Presenting information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, reliable,
comparable and understandable information;

Providing additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRSs are
insufficient to enable users to understand the impact of particular transactions, other events and
conditions on the Bank’s financial position and financial performance,

Making an assessment of the Bank's ability fo continue as a going concern.

Management is also responsible for:

Designing, implementing and maintaining an effective and sound system of internal controls,
throughout the Bank;

Maintaining proper accounting records that disclose and explain the Bank’s transactions, disclose,
with reasonable accuracy at any time, the financial position of the Bank, and which enable them to
ensure that the financial statements of the Bank comply with IFRS;

Maintaining statutory accounting records in compliance with legislation and accounting standards of
the Russian Federation (the “RF”);

Taking such steps as are reasonably available to them to safeguard the assets of the Bank; and
Preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012 were approved by the Bank’s
Management Board on 16 April 2013.

On behalf of the Management Board:

o

Chairmean of the Management Boage e
N. Smirnov

16 April 2013
Moscow

Moscow
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To: Shareholders and the Board of Directors of Open Joint-Stock Company NK Bank:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Open Joint Stock Company

NK Bank (the “Bank”), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December
2012, and the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management of the Bank is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for
such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of

the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion.

Deloitte refers to one or more of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited, a UK private company limited by guarantee, and its network
of member firms, each of which is a legally separate and independent entity. Please see www.deloitte.com/about for a detalled
description of the legal structure of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited and its member firms. Please see www.deloitte.com/ru/about
for a detailed description of the legal structure of Deloitte CIS.

© 2013 ZAO Deloitte & Touche CIS. All rights reserved.

Member of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited 2




Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Bank as at 31 December 2012, and its financial performance and cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

QelokHe o Toueba

30 April 2013
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ZAO Deloitte & ¥

The Entity: Open Joint Stock Company NK Bank

Certificate of state registration Ne2755, issued by the Moscow
Registration Chamber by 18.03.1994.

Certificate Ne 1027739028536 of registration in the Unified State
Register of 30.07.2002., issued by Moscow Interdistrict Inspectorate
of the Russian Ministry of Taxation Ne 39.

Address: 2, Miusskaya square, Moscow, Russia.

Independent Auditor: ZAO “Deloitte & Touche cis”

Certificate of state registration Ne 018.482, issued by the Moscow
Registration Chamber on 30.10.1992.

Certificate of registration in the Unified State Register Ne
1027700425444 of 13.11.2002, issued by Moscow Interdistrict
Inspectorate of the Russian Ministry of Taxation Ne 39.

Certificate of membership in “NP “Audit Chamber of Russia”
(auditors’ SRO) of 20.05.2009 Ne 3026, ORNZ 10201017407.
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Financlai Income statement for the year ended 31 December 2012
(in thousands of Russian Rubles)

Year ended Year ended
Note 31 December 31 December
2012 2011
Continuing operations
Interest income 4,30 1377716 1237 596
Interest expense 4,30 (551 473) (552 789)
Net interest income before provision for impairme:n losses on interest bearing financial assets 826 243 684 807
Provision for impairment losses on interest bearing assets 5,30 (19 425) (243 228)
NET INTEREST INCOME 806 818 441 579
Net ioss on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 6 (4129) (14 868)
Net gain on foreign exchange operations 7.30 118747 270 761
Net gain/(ioss) on financial assets available-for-sale 30 7220 (19811)
Fee and commission income 8,30 ' 71797 67 142
Fee and commission expense * 8 (13 314) (14 328)
(Provision)/ recovery of provision for impairment of assets on other transactions 5 (102) 5857
Net gain on sale of assets held-for-sale 13 - 35337
Dividends received 9,30 1362 628
Other income 10 7330 16 682
NET NON-INTEREST iINCOME 188 911 365 300
OPERATING INCOME 995 729 806 879
OPERATING EXPENSES 11,30 (663 596) (645 475)
PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 332133 161 404
Income tax expense 14 (57 328) (57 720)
PROEIT FOR THE PERIOD FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 274 805 103 684
Discontinued operations
Profit for the period from discontinued operations 12 - 117 044
NET INCOME FOR THE PERIOD 274 805 220728
Chairman of the Management Board S.N. Smimov
Chief Accountant E.M. Merkulova

Yy, The not
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Financlal statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2012
(in thousands of Russian Rubles)

Note

31 December

31 December

Chief Accountant

E.M. Merkulova

2012 2011
NET INCOME 274 805 220728
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Net change in fair vaiue of financial assets available-for-sale 19 752 (11 501)

L]
Income tax effect attributable to other components of comprehensive income (1 756) -
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AFTER INCOME TAX 17 996 (11 501)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 292 801 209 227
Chairman of the Management Board SN Smirnov




Statement of financial position as at 31 December 2012
(in thousands of Russian Rubles)

Note

31 December

31 December

2012 2011
ASSETS
Cash and balances with the Central Bank of the Russian Federation 15 938 697 281 833
Precious metals 16 19 984 143 598
Fnanciai assets at fair value through peofit or loss 17 569 720 499 991
Due from banks and other financial institutions 18 705 977 1275237
Loans to customers 19, 30 7 245432 7715426
Financial assets available-for-sale 20 87 274 229123
Property and equipment and intangibie assets 21 26938 36 805
Other assets 22 8042 11 552
Totai assets 9 602 064 10 193 565
LIABILITIES
Due to banks and other financial institutions 23 904 979 1114 576
Customer accounts 24, ,30 5146 824 5762101
Debt securities issued 25 1500 066 1451418
Subordinated debt 27 148 727 148 500
Other liabilities 26 33 193 43 862
Current income tax liabilities 13 078 1368
Deferred income tax liabilities 14 1756 -
Total ilabilities 7748 623 8 521 825
EQUITY
Share capital 28 679277 679277
Share premium 28 449 358 449 358
Investments available-for-sale revaluation reserve 7022 (10 974)
Retained earnings 717 784 554 079
Totai equity 1853441 1671740
Totai iiabiiities and equity 9 602 064 10 193 565

alf of the Management Board
Chairman of the Management Board S.N. Smimov

Chief Accountant

E.M. Merkulova
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Flnancial statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 December 2012
ﬁ’P (in thousands of Russian Rubles)
r.J
investments
Note Share capital Share premium revaluation Retained earnings Totai equity
reserve
L)
Baiance at 1 January 2011 679 277 449 358 527 456 561 1584723
Other comprehensive income for the year - - (11 501) 220728 209 227
Dividends paid 28 - - - (122 210) (122 210)
Baiance at 1 January 2011 679 277 449 358 {10 974) 554 079 1671740
Other comprehensive income for the year - - 17 996 274 805 292 801
Dividends paid 28 - - - (111 100) (111 100)
Balance at 31 December 2012 679 277 449 358 , 1022 717 784 1853441
........... T of the Management Board
Chairman of the Management Board S.N. Smirmnov
Chief Accountant E.M. Merkulova

= ral part of these financial statements.




Financial statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2012

Year ended Year ended
Note 31 December 31 December
2012 2011
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Gain from continuing operations before income tax 332133 161 404
Adjustments for non-cash items:
Provision for impairment losses on intfrest bearing assets 19425 243 228
(Provision)/ recovery of provision for impairment of assets on other transactions 102 (5 857)
Net change in fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (5 932) 7 282
(Gain)/loss on financial assets available-for-sale (7 220) 1911
Gain on disposal of assets held-for-sale - (35 337)
Depreciation and amortization expense 13 697 12 546
Loss on disposal of property, equipment and intangibie assets 140 713
Dividends received (1362) (628)
Net change in interest accruals 257773 30463
Loss from revaluation of foreign currency accounts and precious metals 117 948 33901
E:::;r:::lnzwofpr:: t.Io':::::;sratlng activities before changes in operating assets and Habilities from 726 704 449 626
Increase/ (decrease) of net cash flows from operating assets and liabllities
Changes in operating assets and liabiiities
(Increase)/decrease in operating assets:
Minimum reserve deposits with the Central Bank of the Russian Federation (10912) (48 556)
Precious metals 122 851 (107 529)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (56 776) 240711
Due from banks and other financial institutions 4832 9368
Loans to customers 99 230 (1516 501)
Other assets 3408 14 282
Increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities:
Due to banks and other financial institutions (209 594) 35392
Customer accounts (579 663) 1021 320
Other liabilities (10 669) (19 465)
Cash inflow from continuing operating activities before taxation 89 411 78 648
income tax from continuing operations paid (45 618) (47 804)
Cash outflow from discontinued operations - (418 461)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities 43793 (387 617)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Acquisition of property, equipment and intangible assets (4 200) (9 477)
Proceeds on disposal of property, equipment and intangible assets 230 2175
Dividends received 1362 628
Purchase of financial assets available-for-sale (879 130) (324 287)
Proceeds from sale of financial assets available-for-sale 1 047 260 385 273
Purchase of financial assets heid-to-maturity (271 117) (50 000)
Proceeds from repayment of financial assets held-to-maturity 281 566 51587
Proceeds on sale of assets held-for-sale - 220 004
Proceeds from sale of shares in a subsidiary 12 - 17 510
Cash inflow from continuing investing activities 175971 293 413
Cash Inflows from discontinued investing activities - 418 459
Not cash inflow from investing activitles 175971 711 872
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Procoeds from placement of debt securities issued 5074 303 3315723
Repayment of debt securities issued (5 097 701) (3 053 728)
Dividends paid on ordinary shares (111 100) (122 210)
$ist cash (outflow)/inflow from continulng financing activities (134 498) 139785




261

Effect of changes in foreign exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents (3799)

Net increase in cash and cash equivaients 81 467 464 301
Cash and cash equivaients as at the beginning of the reporting year 15 1462181 997 880
Cash and cash equivaients at the end of the reporting period 15 1543 648 1462181

Interest received and paid by the Bank during the year ended 31

Interest received and paid by the Bank during the year ended 31 December 2011 amounted to RUB 1,140,298 thousand and RUB 46
)

Chairman of the Management Board S.N. Smimov

Chief Accountant E.M. Merkulova

December 2012 amounted to RUB 1,592,235 thousand and RUB 508,977 thousand, respectively.
7,844 thousand, respectively.
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Notes to the financial statements
(in thousands of Russian Rubles, unless otherwise indicated)

1 Organization
Open Joint Stock Company NK Bank (the “Bank”) is an joint-stock bank which was incorporated in the Russian Federation in 1993. The Bank is regulated by the Central
Bank of the Russian Federation (the “CBR”) and conducts its business under general license for banking operations number 2755. The Bank’s primary business consists
of commercial activities, trading with securities, foreign currencies, originating loans and guarantees.

The registered office of the Bank is located at: 2, Miusskaya square, Moscow, Russia.
The Bank has an additional office "Ocr:akovo" located at: building 14, block 6, Generala Dorokhova St., Moscow.

Since March 2011, after the sale of 100% shares in its subsidiary, OJSC "inkor-Trading” (100% of the share capital — 19 500 shares), the Bank has ceased to be a
member of a consolidated group. As at 31 December 2011 the financial statements of OJSC “Inkor-Trading” were consolidated with the Bank’s financial statements until
the date when the Bank lost control over it (Note 12).

As at 31 December 2012 and 2011 the following sharehoiders (ultimate owners) owned issued shares of the Bank:

31 December 31 December

2012 ' 2011

Viktor Evgenyevich Grigoriev 90,00% 90,00%
Larisa Leonidovna Drozdova 7,00% 4,00%
Dmitry Alexandrovich Drozdov 3,00% ¥ 3,00%
Svetlana Alexandrovna Vikhrova - 3,00%
T 1000 T 1o000%

These financial statements were authorized for issue by the Bank’s Management Board on 16 April 2013..

2 Basis of presentation

Statement of compllance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the Intemational Accounting Standards
Board (IASB) and Interpretations issued by the intemational Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC).

Other basls of presentation criteria
These financial statements have been prepared on the assumption that the Bank is a going concern and will continue to operate for the foreseeable future.

These financial statements are presented in thousands of Russian rubles (“RUB thousand”), unless otherwise indicated. These financial statements of the Bank have
been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that are measured at revalued amounts or fair values, as explained in the accounting
policies below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for assets.

The Bank maintains its accounting records in accordance with Russian Accounting Standards (“RAS”). These financial statements have been prepared from the statutory
accounting records and have been adjusted to conform with IFRS.

The Bank presents its statement of financial position broadly in order of liquidity. An analysis regarding recovery or settlement within 12 months after the statement of
financial position date (current) and more than 12 months after the statement of financial position date (non-current) is presented in Note 34..

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position only when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the liability simuitaneously. Income and expense is not offset
in the income statement uniess required or permitted by any accounting standard or interpretation, and as specifically disciosed in the accounting policies of the Bank.

3 Significant accounting policies

Changes In the Bank's ownership interests in subsidiaries

When the Bank loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss on disposal is caiculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ji) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-
controlling interests. When assets of the subsidiary are carried at revalued amounts or fair values and the related cumulative gain or loss has been recognized in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity, the amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive Income and accumulated in equity are accounted for as if
the Bank had directly disposed of the relevant assets (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred directly to retained eamings as specified by applicable IFRSs). The
fair value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting
under IAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement" or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a jointly
controlled entity.

Recognition of interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognized on an accrual basis using the effective interest method. The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortized cost of a financial asset or a financial liability (or group of financial assets or financial liabilities) and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over
the relevant period.

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees on a debt instrument paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument, or (where appropriate) a shorter
perlod, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognized on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets classified as at FVTPL.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been written down (partly written down) as a result of an impairment loss, interest income is thereafter
fecognized using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.

Intorest eamed on assets at fair value is classified within interest income.
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Recognition of income on repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements

Gain/loss on the sale of the above instruments is recognized as interest income or expense in the statement of profit and loss based on the difference between the
repurchase price accrued to date using the effective interest method and the sale price when such instruments are sold to third parties. When the repo/reverse repo is
fulfilled on its original terms, the effective yield/interest between the sale and repurchase price negotiated under the original contract is recognized using the effective
interest method.

Recognition of revenue — other

Recognition of fee and commission income

Loan origination fees (material) are deferred, together with the related direct costs, and recognized as an adjustment to the effective interest rate of the loan. Where it is
probable that a loan commitment will 1&ad to a specific lending arrangement, the loan commitment fees are deferred, together with the related direct costs, and
recognized as an adjustment to the effective interest rate of the resulting loan. Where it is unlikely that a Joan commitment will lead to a specific lending arrangement, the
loan commitment fees are recognized in profit or loss over the remaining period of the loan commitment.

Where a loan commitment expires without resulting in a loan, the Joan commitment fee is recognized in profit or loss on expiry. Loan servicing fees are recognized as
revenue as the services are provided. Loan syndication fees are recognized in profit or loss when the syndication has been completed. All other commissions are
recognized as services are rendered.

Recognition of dividend income

Dividend income is recognized on the date when the issuer declares interest payment (provided that it is probable that'the economic benefits will flow to the Bank and the
amount of income can be measured reliably).

Financlal Instruments

The Bank recognizes financial assets and liabilities in its statement of financial position when it becomes a party to the contractual obligations of the instrument. Regular
way purchases and sales of financial assets and liabilities are recognized using settiement date accounting.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognized immediately in profit or loss.

Financlal assets

Financial assets are classified into the following specified categories: financial assets “at fair value through profit or loss™ (*FVTPL"), “held to maturity” investments,
“available for sale” (‘AFS”) financial assets and ‘loans and receivables’. The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at
the time of initial recognition.

Financiai assets at FVTPL
Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial asset is either held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

« acquired principally for the purpose of selling them in the near future;

- which are a part of portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed together and for which there is evidence of a recent and actual pattem of short-term
profit taking; or

. it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

« such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise or;

« the financial asset forms part of a group of financial assets or liabilities or both, which is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with the Bank’s documented risk management or investment strategy, and information about the grouping is provided intemally on that basis; or

- it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and IAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement” permits the entire combined
contract (asset or liability) to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognized in profit or loss. Net gain or loss includes dividends and
Interest received on the financial asset. Fair value is determined in the manner described in Note 31.

Held-to-maturity financiai assets

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity dates that the Bank has the positive intent and
ability to hold to maturity. Held to maturity financial assets are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method less any impairment.

If the Bank were to sell or reclassify more than an insignificant amount of held-to-maturity financial assets before maturity (other than in certain specific circumstances),
the entire category would be tainted and would have to be reclassified as available-for-sale. Furthermore, the Bank would be prohibited from classifying any financial
asset as held to maturity during the following two years.

Financial assets available-for-saie

Financial assets available-for-sale are non-derivatives that are either designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as (a) receivables, (b) held-to-maturity
financial assets or (c) financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

Listed shares and listed redeemable notes that are traded in an active market are classified as AFS and are stated at fair value. Fair value is determined in the manner
described in Note 31. Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the investments revaluation
reserve, with the exception of other-than-temporary impairment losses, interest calculated using the effective interest method, and foreign exchange gains and losses,
which are recognized in profit or loss. Where the investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
Investments revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.

The fair value of AFS monetary assets denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency and translated at the spot rate at the end of the reporting
period. The foreign exchange gains and losses that are recognized in profit or loss are determined based on the amortized cost of the monetary asset. Other foreign
exchange gains and losses are recognized in other comprehensive income.

AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are measured at cost less any
|dentified impairment losses at the end of each reporting period.

Loans and accounts receivabie
Trade receivables, loans, and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market are classified as “loans and

roceivables”. Loans and receivables are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment. Interest income is recognized by applying
the effective interest rate, except for short-term receivables when the recognition of interest would be immaterial.



Securities repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements and securities lending transactions

In the normal course of business, the Bank enters into financial assets sale and purchase back agreements (‘repos”) and financial assets purchase and sale back
agreements (“reverse repos”). Repos and reverse repos are utilized by the Bank as an element of its treasury management.

A repo is an agreement to transfer a financial asset to another party in exchange for cash or other consideration and a concurrent obligation to reacquire the financial
assets at a future date for an amount equal to the cash or other consideration exchanged plus interest. These agreements are accounted for as financing transactions.
Financial assets sold under repo are retained in the financial statements and consideration received under these agreements is recorded as collateralized deposit
received within depositary instruments with banks.

Assets purchased under reverse repos are recorded in the financial statements as cash placed on deposit collateralized by securities and other assets and are classified
within due from banks and other financial institutions and/or loans and advances to customers.

The Bank enters into securities repurchale agreements and securities lending transactions under which it receives or transfers collateral in accordance with normal
market practice. Under standard terms for repurchase transactions in the RF, the recipient of collateral has the right to seli or repledge the coiiateral, subject to retuming
equivalent securities on settiement of the transaction.

The transfer of securities to counterparties is only reflected on the statement of financial position if the risks and rewards of ownership are aiso transferred.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be
impaired when there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash
flows of the investment have been affected. '

For listed and uniisted equity investments classified as AFS, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is considered to be an
objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could inciude:

« significant financial difficuity of the issuer or counterparty;

» breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest or principal payments;

+ defauit or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

« it is probabie that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial re-organization; or

* the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a
coilective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could inciude the Bank's past experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments in the portfolio, as well as observabie changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate with defauit on receivabies.

For financial assets carried at amortized cost, the amount of the impairment loss recognized is the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present vaiue of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment ioss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an provision account. When a receivable is considered uncoliectible, it is written off against the provision account. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited against the provision account. Changes in the carrying amount of the provision account are recognized in profit or loss.

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be impaired, cumulative gains or iosses previously recognized in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss in the period.

If in a subsequent period the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is reversed through the profit and ioss account The canrying value of financial assets as of the date of reversal of
impairment loss cannot exceed the carrying amount, which shouid have been recorded if impairment had not been recognized.

In respect of AFS equity securities, impairment losses previousiy recognized in profit or loss are not reversed through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent
to an impairment loss is recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of investments revaluation reserve. In respect of AFS debt
securities, impairment losses are subsequently reversed through profit or ioss if an increase in the fair value of the investment can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the recognition of the impairment loss.

Renegotiated loans

Where possible, the Bank seeks to restructure loans rather than to take possession of collateral. This may involve extending the payment arrangements and the
agreement of new ioan conditions. Once the terms have been renegotiated any impairment is measured using the original effective interest rate as caiculated before the
modification of terms and the ioan is no longer considered past due. Management continually reviews renegotiated loans to ensure that all criteria are met and that future
payments are likely to occur. The loans continue to be subject to an individual or coliective impairment assessment, caiculated using the loan's original effective interest
rate.

Write-off of loans to customers

Loans to customers are written off against the provision for impairment losses when deemed uncoliectible, including through repossession of coliateral. Loans to
customers are written off after management has exercised all possibilities available to collect amounts due to the Bank and after the Bank has soid all available
collateral. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are reflected as an offset to the charge for impairment of financial assets in the statement of profit and
loss {the statement of comprehensive income) in the period of recovery.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of the financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognized where:

+ aright to receive cash flows from the asset has expired;

+ the Bank has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or retained the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay
them in full without materiai delay to a third party under a “pass-through” arrangement;

« the Bank either (a) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

A financial asset is derecognized when it has been transferred and the transfer qualifies for derecognition. A transfer required that the Bank either (@) transfers the
contractual rights to receive the asset's cash flows; or (b) retains the right to receive the asset's cash flows but assumes a contractual obligation to pay those cash flows
10 a third party. After a transfer, the Bank reassesses the extent to which it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership of the transferred asset. If substantiaily all the
fisks and rewards have been retained, the asset remains on the balance sheet. If substantially all of the risks and rewards have been transferred, the asset is
dorecognized. if substantially all the risks and rewards have been neither retained nor transferred, the Bank assesses whether or not it has retained control of the asset. if
It has not retained control, the asset is derecognized. Where the Bank retained control of the asset, it continues to recognize the asset to the extent of its continuing
Involvement.




Financial liabillties and equlty Instruments Issued

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions
of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments
An equity Instrument is any contract that evigences a resiaual Interest In the assets of an enlity atter deaucting all of its habiiues. k=quity Instruments Issued by the Bank
are recognized at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Bank’s own equity instruments is recognized and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue
or cancellation of the Bank's own equity ingfruments.

Other financial liabllities
Other financial liabilities, including depository instruments with the the Central Bank of the Russian Federation, deposits by banks and customers, debt securities issued,
other borrowed funds and other liabilities, are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost Interest expense is calculated using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the financial ljability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to
the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Bank derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only when, the Bank's obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire. Where an existing financial liability is
replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification
is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognized
and the consideration paid and payable is recognized in profit and loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor
fails to make payments when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Bank are initially measured at their fair values and, if not designated by Management as at FVTPL, are subsequently
measured at the higher of:

+ the amount of the obligation under the contract, as determined in accordance with IAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”;
+ the amount initially recognized less, where appropriate, cumulative amortization recognized in accordance with the revenue recognition policies.

Derivative financial instruments

The Bank enters into a variety of derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to foreign exchange rate risk, including foreign exchange forward contracts and
Cross currency swaps.

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value at the date the derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of each
reporting period. Gains and losses arising from that are immediately recognized through financial results, except derivatives designated and effective as a hedging
instrument.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
ciassified as operating leases.

The Bank as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognized as receivables at the amount of the Bank’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is
allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of retum on the Bank’s net investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the camrying amount of the leased asset and recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Bank as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognized as assets of the Bank at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present value of the
minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the statement of financial position as a finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the liability. Financial expenses are recognized in profit or loss, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalized in accordance
with the Bank’s general policy on borrowing costs. Contingent rentals are recognized as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred in accordance with the Bank's
policy. Contingent rentals arising under finance leases are recognized as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another systematic basis is more representative of
the time pattem in which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are recognized as an expense in the
period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating leases, such incentives are recognized as a liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is
recognized as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except where another systematic basis is rmore representative of the time pattern in which economic
benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

Property and equipment
Fixtures and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is recognized so as to write off the cost or valuation of assets less their residual values over their useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis at the following annual rates:.

Buildings 2%
Office and computer equipment 10-25%
Cars and other equipment 20-25%
Other 33%




Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets or, where shorter, the term of the relevant lease.

An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or ioss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognized in profit or loss.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately
Intangible assets with finite useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. amortization is recognized on a straight-

line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortization method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on‘a prospective basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

Actual cost of intangible assets is derecognized at the following annual rates:

Intangible assets 30 - 100%

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognized on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an
intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposai proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognized in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognized.

Impairment of property, equipment and intangible assets other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Bank reviews the carrying amounts of its property, equipment and intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any).

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an indication
that the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. in assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the canying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognized immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years.
Reversal of an impairment loss is recognized immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the
Impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

Precious metals

Assets and liabilities denominated in precious metals are translated at the current rate computed based on the second fixing of the London Metal Exchange rates, using
the RUB/USD exchange rate effective at the date. Changes in the bid prices are recorded in net gain/(loss) on operations with precious metals operations.

Cash and cash equivaients

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, unrestricted balances on corresponded and term deposits with the Central Bank of the Russian Federation (“CBR")
with original maturity of less or equal to 90 days and amounts with original maturity of less or equal to 30 days due from:

- banks in the countries included into the Organization for Economic Co-operation and Development (‘OECD"),

-central banks of the countries ranked highest according to classifications of Expert Credit Agencies;

- non-resident banks in the countries outside OECD, but with a minimum international credit rank Ba3/BB-;

- resident banks that have a stable financial position according to the Bank’s assessment.

The minimum reserve deposits with the CBR are subject to restrictions to its availability and therefore are not included in cash and cash equivalents.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current income tax expense

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive
Income/statement of profit and loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible.
The liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Doferred taxe

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases
used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
rocognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilized. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognized if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than In a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Doferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint ventures, except
where the Bank is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Doferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated with such investments and interests are only recognized to the extent that it is probable that
thero will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilize the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Doforred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realized, based on tax
fatoa (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
i tox consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Bank expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its
#3801 and liabilities.




Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred taxes are recognized in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case the current and deferred tax are also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises
from the initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting for the business combination.

Operating taxes

The Russian Federation also has various other taxes, which are assessed on the Bank's activities. These taxes are included as a component of operating expenses in
the statement of profit and loss.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Bank has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Bank will be required to settle
the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into
account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying
amount is the present value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a receivable is recognized as an asset if it is
virtually centain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Contingencles

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the statement of financial position but are disclosed in the financial statements unless the possibility of any outflow in
settiement is remote. A contingent asset is not recognized in the statement of financial position but disclosed in the financial statements when an inflow of economic
benefits is probable.

Fiduclary activities

The Bank provides depositary services to its customers which include transactions with securities on their depositary accounts. Assets accepted and liabilities incurred
under the fiduciary activities are not included in the Bank's financial statements. The Bank accepts the operational risk on these activities, but the Bank’s customers bear
the credit and market risks associated with such operations. Revenue for provision of trustee services is recognized as services are provided.

Forelgn currencies

In preparing the financial statements of the Bank, transactions in currencies other than the functional currency (*foreign currencies”) are recorded at the rates of exchange
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. The exchange rates used by the Bank in the preparation of the
financial statements as at year-end are as follows:

31 December 31 December

2012 2011

RUB/MJSD 30,3727 32,1961
RUB/ EUR 40,2286 41,6714
RUB/BYR 10,000 35,3376 38,5582
RUB/Gold bullion (1 ounce) 50 540,17 50692,76

Collateral

The Bank obtains collateral in respect of customer liabilities where this is considered appropriate. The collateral normally takes the form of a lien over the customer's
assets and gives the Bank a claim on these assets for both existing and future customer liabilities.

Equity reserves

The reserves recorded in equity (other comprehensive income) on the Bank's statement of financial position include investments available-for-sale revaluation reserve
which comprises changes in the fair value of available-for-sale investments.

Assets classlfied as held-for-sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the non-current asset (or disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its
present condition. Management must be committed to the sale, which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of
classification.

When the Bank is committed to a sale plan involving loss of control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities of that subsidiary are classified as held for sale when
the criteria described above are met, regardless of whether the Bank will retain a non-controlling interest in its former subsidiary after the sale.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held-for-sale are measured at the lower of their previous carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.
Critical accounting judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainties

In the application of the Bank’s accounting policies the directors are required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the camrying amounts of assets and
llnbilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Tho estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is
fovised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Impairment for receivables

The Bank regularly reviews its receivables to assess for impairment. The Bank's impairment provisions are established to recognize incurred impairment losses in its
portfollo of receivables. The Bank considers accounting estimates related to provision for impairment of receivables a key source of estimation uncertainty because (i)
thoy are highly susceptible to change from period to period as the assumptions about future default rates and valuation of potential losses relating to impaired receivables
@10 based on recent performance experience, and (ii) any significant difference between the Bank’s estimated losses and actual losses would require the Bank to record
Provislons which could have a material impact on its financial statements in future periods.
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Theprovisions for impairment of financial assets in the financial statements have been determined on the basis of existing economic and political conditions. The Bank is
not in a position to predict what changes in conditions will take place in the Russian Federation and what effect such changes might have on the adequacy of the
provisions for impairment of financial assets in future periods.

Valuation of financial instruments

As described in Note 31, the Bank uses valuation techniques that include inputs that are not based on observable market date to estimate the fair value of certain types
of financial instruments. Note 31 provides detailed information about the key assumptions used in the determination of the fair value of financial instruments. The
directors believe that the chosen valuation techniques and assumptions used are appropriate in determining the fair value of financial instruments.

Adoption of new and revised standards
Adoption of new standards ]
Amendments to IFRSs affecting presentation and disclosure only

The Bank has adopted the following new or revised standards and interpretations issued by Intemational Accounting Standards Board and the International Financial
Reporting Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC") which became effective for the Bank’s annual financial statement for the year ended 31 December 2012:

Amendments to IFRS 7 “Discls es - Tr fers of Financial Assets”

The Bank has applied the amendments to IFRS 7 “Disclosures — Transfers of Financial Assets” in the current year. The amendments increase the disclosure
requirements for transactions involving the transfer of financial assets in order to provide greater transparer;cy around risk exposures when financial assets are
transferred.

Amendments to IAS 1 “Presentation of items of Other Comprehensive Income”

The Bank has applied the amendments to IAS 1 “Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income” in advance of the effective date (annual periods beginning on or
after 1 July 2012). The amendments introduce new terminology for the statement of comprehensive incorge and income statement. Under the amendments to IAS 1
“Presentation of ltems of Other Comprehensive Income”, the “statement of comprehensive income” is renamed the “statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income” and the “income statement” is renamed the “statement of profit or loss*. The amendments to IAS 1 “Presentation of ltems of Other Comprehensive Income”
retain the option to present profit or loss and other comprehensive income in either a single statement or in two separate but consecutive statements. However, the
amendments to IAS 1 require items of other comprehensive income to be grouped into two categories in the other comprehensive income section: (a) items that will not
be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss and (b) items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when specific conditions are met. Income tax on items of
other comprehensive income is required to be allocated on the same basis — the amendments do not change the option to present items of other comprehensive income
either before tax or net of tax. The application of the amendments to IAS 1 “Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income” does not result in any impact on profit
or loss, other comprehensive income and total comprehensive income.

Standards and interpretations issued but not yet adopted
The Bank did not apply the following standards and interpretations issued but not yet adopted:

IFRS 9 “FInanclal Instruments”

IFRS 8 *Financial Instruments”, issued in November 2008 and amended in October 2010, introduces new requirements for the classification and measurement of
financial assets and financial liabilities and for derecognition.

Key requirements of IFRS 9:

« all recognized financial assets that are within the scope of IAS 39 “Financial Instruments:* "Recognition and Measurement” to be subsequently measured at amortized
cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are held within a business model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding are generally measured at amortized cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. All other debt investments and equity investments are measured at their fair values at the end of subsequent accounting periods. In addition, under IFRS 9
“Financial Instruments”, entities may make an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity investment (that is not held for trading) in
other comprehensive income, with only dividend income generally recognized in profit or loss.

+ with regard to the measurement of financial liabilities designated as at fair value through profit or loss, IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments® requires that the amount of
change in the fair value of the financial liability, that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability, is presented in other comprehensive income, unless the
recognition of the effects of changes in the liability's credit risk in other comprehensive income would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes
In fair value attributable to a financial liability's credit risk are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Previously, under IAS 39 “Financial Instruments:* "Recognition
and Measurement”, the entire amount of the change in the fair value of the financial liability designated as at fair value through profit or loss was recognized in profit or
loss.

The management anticipates that IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” in the future may have a significant impact on amounts reported in respect of the Bank's financial assets
and financial liabilities (e.g. the Bank's investments in redeemable notes that are currently classified as available-for-sale investments will have to be measured at fair
value at the end of subsequent reporting periods, with changes in the fair value being recognized in profit or loss). However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable
estimate of the effect of IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” until a detailed review has been completed.

IFRS 13 “Falr Value Measurement”

IFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement” establishes a single source of guidance for fair value measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements. The Standard
defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value, and requires disclosures about fair value measurements. The scope of IFRS 13 “Fair Value
Measurement” is broad; it applies to both financial instrument items and non-financial instrument items for which other IFRSs require or permit fair value measurements
and disclosures amount fair value measurements, except in specified circumstances. In general, the disclosure requirements in IFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement” are
more extensive than those required in the current standards. For example, quantitative and qualitative disclosures based on the three-leve! fair value hierarchy currently
required for financial instruments only under IFRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures® will be extended by IFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement” to cover all assets and
llabilities within its scope.

The Bank's management anticipates that the application of the new Standard may affect certain amounts reported in the financial statements and result in more extensive
disclosures in the financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 7 “Flnanclal Instruments: Disclosures” and IAS 32 “Flnancial Instruments:* "Presentatlon” - “Offsetting FInanclal Assets and Financla!
Liabliities and the related dlsclosures”

Amendments to IAS 32 “Financial Instruments: Presentation” clarify existing application issues relating to the offset of financial assets and financial liabilities
requirements. Specifically, the amendments clarify: the meaning of “currently has a legally enforceable right of set-of” and “simultaneous realization and settiement”.

The amendments to IFRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures” require entities to disclose information about rights of offset and related arrangements (such as collateral
posting requirements) for financial instruments under an enforceable master netting agreement or similar arrangement.

Tho disclosures should be provided retrospectively for all comparative periods.

The Bank's management anticipates that the application of these amendments to IAS 32 and IFRS 7 may resuit in more disclosures being made with regards to offsetting
financlal assets and financial liabilities in the future.
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4 Net interest income

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2012 2011
interest income
Interest income on financial assets recorded at amortized cost comprises:
Interest on impaired financial assets 876 276 916 792
Interest on unimpaired financial assets 356 913 242 851
Interest income on financial assets at fair value 144 527 77953
Totai Interest income 1377716 1237 596
Interest income on assets recorded at amortized cost comprises:
Interest income on loans to customers 1191322 1151 509
Interest income on deposits with banks 31452 8 089
Interest on financial assets held-to-maturity 10415 45
Total interest income on financiai assets recorded at amortized cost 1233 189 1159 643
Interest income on financial assets at fair value comprises:
Interest on financial assets held for trading 130 747 67 297
Interest income on financial assets available-for-sale 13780 10 656
Totai interest income on financiai assets at fair vaiue 144 527 77 963
interest expense
Interest expense on liabilities recorded at amortized cost (551 473) (552 789)
Totai interest expense (551 473) (552 789)
Interest expense on financial liabilities recorded at amortized cost comprises:
Interest expenses on customer accounts (345 246) (309 924)
Interest on debt securities issued (118 591) (141 085)
Interest expenses on balances due to banks and other financial institutions (75 756) (89 933)
Interest expenses on subordinated debt (11 880) (11 847)
Total Interest expense on financiai liabilities recorded at amortized cost (651 473) (552 789)
Net interest income before provision for impairment iosses on interest bearing assets 826 243 684 807
5 Provisions for impairment iosses
The movements in provision for impairment losses on interest bearing assets were as follows:
Baiance at Bailance at
31 December ::‘(:t::l:fsf Provisions 31 December
2011 2012
Change in provision for impairment iosses on interest bearing
assets
On loans to customers 955 719 (33 044) 19 425 942 100
Total change in provision for impairment losses on interest
bearing assets 955 719 (33 044) 19 425 942 100
Baiance at Baiance at
31 December ::::‘::t:; Provislons 31 December
2010 2011
Change in provision for impairment iosses on interest bearing
assets
On loans to customers 905 103 (192 612) 243 228 955719
Totai change in provision for impairment iosses on interest
bearing assets 905 103 (192 612) 243 228 955 719
The movements in provision for other assets were as follows:
Bailance at Baiance at
31 December ::::t::l::f Provisions 31 December
2011 2012
Change in provision for other iosses
Provision for impairment on other operations - (102) 102 -
Total change In provision for other assets - (102) 102 -
Bailance at Bailance at
31 December Recovery of provisions 31 December
2010 2011
Change In provision for other losses
Provision for impairment on other operations 5857 (5 857) -
5857 (5 857) -

Totai change in provision for other assets
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 outstanding amounts in respect of the following loans and other assets were written off against the provision:

- in connection with termination of execution proceedings and expiration of the limitation period for collecting a debt from a iegal entity on the basis of a bailiff's decision
of 18 December 2012, the Bank wrote off uncollectible debt of RUB 29,592 thousand (the amount of principal and interest for the loan period) and expenses on paying a
state duty (legal fees) of RUB 102 thousand against previously accrued provision.

- in connection with termination of execution proceedings and expiration of the limitation period for collecting a debt from an individual on the basis of a bailiff's decision
of 13 November 2012, the Bank wrote off uncoliectible debt of RUB 3,327 thousand (the amount of principal and interest for the loan period) against previously accrued
provision.

- in connection expiration of the limitation period for coliecting a debt from an individual on the basis of Decision of the Management Board of the Bank of 25 December
2012, the Bank wrote off uncollectible debt %f RUB 125 thousand (the amount of principal and interest for the loan period) against previously accrued provision.

For the year ended 31 December 2011 outstanding amounts in respect of the following loans were written off against the provision:

- in connection with winding up of the borrower, being a legal entity, on the basis of Resolution of the court on completion of bankruptcy proceedings of 18 October 2012,
the Bank wrote off the debt that had remained outstanding after bankruptcy proceedings of RUB 192,612 thousand (the amount of principal and interest for the loan
period) against previously accrued provision.

6 Netioss on financiai assets at fair vaiue through profit or ioss

31 December 2012 31 December 2011
Fair value Realized trading Fair value Realized trading
adjustment income Total adjustment income Total

Net gain/(loss) on financial assets N
initially designated at fair value 5932 (10 061) (4 129) (7 279) (7 586) {14 865)
through profit or loss

Expenses on operations with

derivative instruments B ° ° @ B @)
Totai net ioss on financiai
assets at fair vaiue through 5932 {10 061) (4 129) (7 282) (7 586) (14 868)
profit or ioss
7 Net gain on foreign exchange operations
Net gain on foreign exchange operations comprises:
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2012 2011
Dealing, net 137 735 283 256
Foreign exchange gains and losses, net (18 988) (12 495)
Total net gain on foreign exchange operations 118 747 270 761
8 Fee and commission income and expense
Fee and commission income and expense comprise:
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2012 2011
Fee and commission income
Settlements 27 203 24 861
Currency control 16 312 15 365
Cash operations and cash collection 16193 20 068
Guarantees issued 5402 4427
Brokerage services 3955 1157
Providing of loans 1096 601
Other 1636 663
Total commission income 71797 67 142
Fee and commission expense
Settlements (12 806) (13 837)
Cash operations and cash collection (118) (170)
Other (390) (321)
Total fee and commisslon expense (13 314) (14 328)
9 Dividends received
Dividends received for the year ended 31 December 2012 and 2011 were as follows:
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2012 2011
0JSC “Ufa Engine Industrial Association” 1034 .
CJSC “Intemational Energy Center” N 382
0JSC MEUZ “Yuvelirprom” 328 246
Totai dividends received 1362 628




—

10 Other Income

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2012 2011
Income from precious metai operations, net 5708 15 053
Lease of safe deposit boxes 751 1138
Other 871 491
Total other Income 7 330 16 682
)
11 Operating expenses
Operating expenses include:
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2012 2011
Staff costs 409 490 444 658
Operating leases ! 83 640 60 225
Insurance contributions 60 348 26 814
Payments to the Deposit Insurance Fund 14 032 12626
Depreciation and amortization expense ‘ 13697 12 546
Security expenses 12 180 11030
Non-exclusive right to use software 11737 7843
Taxes, other than income tax 11068 18 089
Telecommunications 11054 10091
Property and equipment maintenance 6987 8634
Professional services 4163 4123
Advertising 2766 2658
Purchase of stationery 2168 1844
Software product support 2008 1672
Rating assignment services 1483 1369
Banking system support 1436 1348
Property insurance 944 1036
Sale of property and equipment 140 713
Other 14 255 18 156
Total operating expenses 663 596 645 475

12 Profit for the period from discontinued operations

In accordance with Resolution of the Board of Directors, on 14 March 2011 the Bank closed the sale of 100% shares in its subsidiary, 0JSC "Inkor-Trading”, to a Russian
company (100% of the share capital - 19 500 shares) for a consideration of RUB 17,510 thousand. In 2011 OJSC "Inkor-Trading" was classified as discontinued
operations.

Total results on discontinuing operations of the subsidiary included in consolidated statement of profit and ioss for the year ended 31 December 2011 are represented
below:

Year ended

31 December

2011
Interest income 4751

Interest expense (9 885)

NET INTEREST COST (5 134)
Net gain on foreign exchange operations 21335

Fee and commission expense (20)
Other income 11554
NET NON-INTEREST INCOME 32 869
27735

OPERATING EXPENSES (8 110)
Profit for the period 19 625
Gain on disposal of the subsidiary 97 419
Profit for the period from discontinued operations 117 044

Assets and liabilities attributable to disposal of the subsidiary as at 14 March 2011 are represented below:

14 March

2011
Cash and cash equivalents 11297
Property, plant and equipment 338 150
Investments 302 790
Other assets 5653
Total assets 657 890
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Due to banks 735723
Other liabilities 2076
Total ilabilities 737 799
Net assets (79 909)

Gain on disposal of the subsidiary is presented below:
]

Year ended
31 December
2011
Consideration received 17 510
Net assets (79 909)
Galn on disposal of the subsidiary 97 419
13 Net gain on sale of assets held-for-sale
Financial resuit from sale of assets held for sale for the year ended 31 December 2011 comprised the foliowing: .
Year ended
31 December
2011
Financial resuit from the sale of iand plots 29828
Financial resuit from the sale of premises and land plot leasehold 5 509
Total net gain on sale of assets held-for-sale 35337

In 2009 under an amicable agreement the Bank received land plots (Moscow Region, Odintsovsky District) as a substitute for the performance of obligations under a loan
agreement. The Bank classified these assets as held-for-sale. Under the amicable agreement the value of land plots was equal to the amount of debt under the loan
agreement, plus interest and forfeit for Jate payment of interest - RUB 143,807 thousand, depreciation of these assets comprised RUB 28,734 thousand. The Bank soid
these assets on 27 May 2011. Disposal gain totaled RUB 29,828 thousand.

In June 2011 within the scope of bankruptcy proceedings the Bank received premises and land plot leasehoid (Moscow, Rublevskoe shosse) as a substitute for the
performance of obligations under a loan agreement. The bank classified these assets as held-for-sale. Basing on the resolution on transfer of unsold property of the
borrower the value of these assets comprised RUB 69,494 thousand. The Bank sold these assets in August-September 2011. Gain on disposal RUB 5,509 thousand.

14 Income tax

The Bank provides for income taxes based on the tax accounts maintained and prepared in accordance with the tax regulations of RF which may differ from IFRS.
The Bank is subject to certain permanent tax differences due to the non-tax deductibility of certain expenses and certain income being treated as non-taxable for tax
purposes.

Deferred taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts
used for tax purposes. Temporary differences at 31 December 2012 and 2011 relate mostly to different methods of income and expense recognition as well as to
recorded values of certain assets.

Temporary differences as at 31 December 2012 and 2011 comprise:

31 December 31 December
2012 2011

Deductible temporary differences:
Other liabilities 31414 38979
Loans to customers 1400 101 552
Property and equipment and intangible assets - 1233
Other assets 2196 627
Total deductible temporary differences 35010 142 391
Taxable temporary differences:
Financial assets at fair value through profit or ioss and available-for-sale 19 140 13 067
Property and equipment and intangibie assets 341 -
Debt securities issued 5211 1573
Precious metails 5194 2534
Taxable temporary differences 29 886 17 174
Net deferred assets 5124 125 217
Net deferred assets at the rate of 20% 1025 25043
Less unrecognized deferred tax asset (1 .025) (25 043)

Net deferred tax liabilities - -




Relationships between income tax expenses and accounting profit for the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011 are explained below:

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2012 2011

Profit before income tax 332133 278 448
Tax at the statutory tax rate (20%) 66 427 55 690
Tax effect of change in unrecognized deferred tax asset (17 974) 10132
Unrecognized loss carried forward * 12 240
Effect of tax rate, different from the rate of 20% (939) (781)
Tax effect of permanent difference 9 802 (7 561)
Current income tax expense 57 328 57720
57 328 57720

Income tax expense for the year

Deferred Income tax llabliities

31 December

31 December

2012 2011
Beglinning of the period : - 132
Change in deferred income tax for the period charged to equity 1756 (132)
1756 -

End of the period

45 Cash and balances with the Central Bank of the Russlan Federation

31 December

31 December

2012 2011
Balances with the Central Bank of the Russian Federation 727 437 140 892
Cash on hand 211 260 140 941
Total cash and balances with the Central Bank of the Russlan Federation 938 697 281 833

The balances with the Central Bank of the Russian Federation as at 31 December 2012 and 2011 include RUB 97,154 thousand and RUB 86,242 thousand, respectively,
which represent the obligatory minimum reserve deposits with the Central Bank of the Russian Federation. The Bank is required to maintain the minimum reserve deposit

with the CBR at the constant basis.

Cash and cash equivalents presented in the statement of cash flows comprise:

31 December

31 December

2012 2011
Cash and balances with the Central Bank of the Russian Federation 938 697 281833
Term interbank loans with maturity within 30 days 170 052 -
Correspondent accounts with resident banks 70755 66 085
Correspondent accounts with OECD banks 461 298 1 200 505
Total 1640802 1548 423
Less minimum reserve deposits with the Central Bank of the Russian Federation (97 154) (86 242)
1543 648 1462181

Total cash and cash equivalents

16 Preclous metals

As at 31 December 2012 and 2011 precious metals included gold in the Bank's vault with the carrying amount of RUB 19,984 thousand and RUB 143,598 thousand,

respectively.

47 Financlal assets at falr value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss comprise:

31 December

31 Decoember

2012 2011
Financial assets held for trading
Debt securities 569 720 499 991
Total financlal assets at falr value through profit or loss 569 720 499 991
Held for trading (HFT) financial assets include:

. Interest to 31 December Interest to 31 December

Bestsecuritics: nominal % 2012 nominal % 2011
Bonds issued by Russian banks 8.5%-13.9% 339 247 1.75%-14% 299 256
Russian State Bonds (OF2) 7.15%-11.2% 168 015 11.2%-11.3% 170179
Russian corporate bonds 8.25%-10.25% 62 458 11.85% 30 556
Total debt securities 569 720 499 991




As at 31 December 2012 bonds issued by Russian banks included bonds denominated in Russian Rubles with maturities from November 2013 through December 2017.
These bonds include a put option exercisable during 2013-2014.

As at 31 December 2011 bonds issued by Russian banks included promissory notes denominated in Russian Rubles with maturities from April 2012 through November
2014.

Russian State Bonds (OFZ) are ruble denominated state securities issued with a discount to nominal cost and guaranteed by the Ministry of Finance of the Russian
Federation. OFZs include short and medium-term bonds.

As at 31 December 2012 and 2011 corporate bonds issued by Russian companies comprised ruble denominated bonds with maturities from September 2017 through
February 2021 and in October 2013, respectively.

18 Due from banks and other financlal InStitutions

31 December 31 December
2012 2011
Correspondent accounts of banks and overnight deposits 534 808 1266 719
Term interbank loans and deposits 170 052 -
Other accounts with financial institutions 1117 8518
Total due from banks and other financlal Institutions 705 977 1275237

As at 31 December 2012 and 2011 the Bank had amounts due from DEUTSCHE BANK group which exceeded 10% of the Bank's equity, of RUB 453,045 thousand and
RUB 1,191,877 thousand, respectively.

19 Loans to customers

31 December 31 December

2012 2011

Loans to customers 8 187 532 8671145
Less provision for impairment losses (942 100) (955 719)
Total loans to customers 7 245 432 7715426

The Bank provides loans to small and medium businesses, including at the expense of target resources of Open Joint Stock Company “Russian Bank for Small and
Medium Enterprises Support* within the program of rendering financial support to small and medium businesses. As at 31 December 2012 and 2011 loans to customers
issued under this program amounted to RUB 826,784 thousand and RUB 1,041,085 thousand, respectively (Note 23).

As at 31 December 2012 and 2011 loans to customers amounting to RUB 826,784 thousand and RUB 1,336,085 thousand, respectively, were used as a collateral for
borrowed funds of Open Joint Stock Company “Russian Bank for Small and Medium Enterprises Support* (Note 23).

Movements in provisions for impairment losses on loans to customers for the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011 are disclosed in Note 5.

The table below summarizes the amount of loans analyzed by type of collateral, rather than the fair value of the collateral itself:

31 December 31 December

2012 2011
Loans collateralized by pledge of real estate 1252 966 1546 517
Loans collateralized by rights of demand 997 658 562 867
Loans collateralized by the Bank's promissory notes 653 308 295934
Loans collateralized by pledge of equipment 462 481 425 998
Loans collateralized by pledge of securities 225 605 220318
Loans collateralized by goods 137 932 16 044
Loans collateralized by corporate guarantees 54 914 108 944
Loans collateralized by deposits - 138 706
Unsecured loans 4 402 668 5355817
8 187 532 8671145

Less provision for impairment losses (942 100) (955 719)
Total loans to customers 7 245 432 7715426
Risk concentrations on customer loan portfolio by industries are as follows:

31 December 31 December

2012 2011

Wholesale 2048 123 1904 389
Financial activities 1799 527 2149 139
Individuals 1412934 2106 754
Real estate operations 809 692 923 385
Construction 656 121 11284
Machinery construction 429 490 402 188
Transport and communication 401 392 396 000
Light industry 284 000 350 000
Tourism 168 302 67 353
Hotels and restaurants 112 599 55382
Retail trading 55 501 221292
Electric power engineering - 60 000
Metallurgy - 20037
Other 9 851 3942
8 187532 8671145

Less provision for impairment losses (942 100) (955 719)

Total loans to customers 7 245 432 7715426




As at 31 December 2012 and 2011 the Bank issued loans to 13 and 14 borrowers totaling RUB 3,703,401 thousand and RUB 4,230,368 thousand, respectively, which

individually exceeded 10% of the Bank's equity.

As at 31 December 2012 and 2011 loans to customers were grouped into the following classes according to their features and nature of disclosure:

31 December 2012

31 December 2011

customars Provson 1 e coomars  Provean Nt o
f,";i;f of loans to legal . 6774509 792 048 5982 551 6 564 390 721613 5842777
Loans for current operations 5963 231 671963 5291 268 6128 054 648 890 5479 164
Investment loans 456 475 78 826 377 649 107 096 - 107 096
Loans “against turnover* 354 893 41259 313634 329 240 72723 256 517
Classes of loans to Indlviduals 1412933 150 052 1262 881 2106 755 234 106 1872649
Targeted loans to individuals 1002 166 98 823 903 343 I1 882 542 174 848 1707 694
Consumer loans 406 230 49 931 356 299 220722 57 631 163 191
Plastic cards overdrafts 4537 1298 3239 3491 1727 1764
Total loans to customers 8187 532 942 100 7 245 432 8671145 956719 7715426
The table below summarizes an analysis of loans to customers by impairment:

31 December 2012 31 December 2011

customers Proviion 2 eemers comers  Powson  Netlamst
Loans impaired individually 5217 364 939 659 4277 705 6508 108 948 313 5559 795
Loans impaired coliectively 38 493 2441 36 052 74 018 7 406 66 612
Unimpaired loans 2931675 - 2931675 2089019 - 2089 019
Total loans to customers 8 187 532 942 100 7 245 432 8671145 955719 7715426

The following table provides information on the ioans that would have been past due or impaired if they had not been renegotiated:

31 December 2012

31 December 2011

Loans to . Net loans to Loans to -

customers Provision customers customers Provision Net loans to customers
Classes of loans to legal 756 019 117 141 638 878 1118 208 72308 1045 993
entities
Other loans for current 745 626 116 494 629 132 1010289 72042 938 247
operations
Investment ioans - - - 107 096 - 107 096
Loans “against tumover” 10 393 647 9746 913 263 650
Classes of loans to
Individuals 514 399 12 059 502 340 1057 793 167 138 900 655
Targeted loans to
individuals 496 626 11170 485 456 1014762 114718 900 044
Consumer ioans 17773 889 16 884 43 031 42420 611
Total loans to customers 1270 418 129 200 1141 218 2176 091 229 443 1946 648
20 Fir lal assets avallable-for-sale

Financial assets available-for-sale comprise:

31 December

31 December

2012 2011
Debt securities 79 689 172715
Equity securities 7 585 56 408
Total financlal assets avallable-for-sale 87 274 229 123
Financial assets available-for-sale include:
Debt securitles:

Title Interest to 31 December Interest to 31 December
nominal % 2012 nominal % 2011

Eurobonds, issued by companies 79 689 8.25%-12% 172715
Total debt securities 79 689 172715




Equity securities:

Title Ownership 31 December Ownership 31 December
Interest, % 2012 Interest, % 2011
Corporate shares:
Shares issued by 0JSC MEUZ “Yuvelirprom® 0.69% 7585 0.69% 7585
Shares issued by OJSC “Ufa Engine Industrial Association” - - 1.01% 48 823
7585 56 408

Total equity securitles

As at 31 December 2012 the Bank's portfolio included Eurobonds of CBOM Finance P.L.C. that are traded in intemational markets. The coupon income on these
securities is payable twice a year. The s8curities mature in August 2014,

As at 31 December 2011 the Bank's portfolio included Eurobonds of CBOM Finance P.L.C. and TFB Finance Limited that are traded in intemationai markets. The coupon
income on these securities is Payable twice a year. These securities mature in August 2014 and February 2012, respectively,

21 Property and equipment and Intangible assets

Office and computer Cars and other

equipment equipment Intangible assets Other Total
Net book value at 1 January 12 496 16729 ! 7580 R 36 805
2012
Balance at beginning of the year 25586 25149 22 870 - 73 605
Additions 1146 1266 . 1722 66 4 200
Disposais (835) (1138) (3 324) (5297)
Balance at the end of the
period 25897 25277 21268 66 72 508
Accumulated depreciation at the
beginning of the year (13 090) (8 420) (15 290) (36 800)
Depreciation charge (3877) (5 222) (4 598) - (13 697)
Disposals 835 1114 2978 - 4927
Accumulated depreclation at
the end of the year (16132 (12 528) {16 910) - {45 570)
Net book value at 31 December
2012 9765 12749 4358 66 26 938

Office and computer Cars and other Capital

Bulidings equipment equipment Investments Intanglible assets Other Total

;‘:1'1"“" value at1 January 307 918 46188 16 958 2539 10019 124 383 746
Balance at beginning of the year 310782 59 404 25842 2539 28 348 128 427 043
Additions - 808 5019 - 3 650 - 9477
Disposais - (3703) (5 712) - (9 128) - (18 543)
Disposals of property and
equipment in discontinued (310 782) (30 923) - (2539) - (128) (344 372)
operations
Balance at the end of the
period - 25 586 25149 - 22 870 - 73 605
Accumulated depreciation at the
beginning of the year (2884) (13 216) (8884) - (18329) @ (43 207)
Depreciation charge - (3 993) (5 059) - (3 494) - (12 546)
Depreciation charge in
discontinuing operations (1796) (1031) ) : ° Y] (2834)
Disposais - 3599 5523 - 6533 - 16 655
Disposals in discontinued
operations 4660 1581 - - - 11 6 222
Accumulated depreclation at
the end of the year N (13 090) (8 420) - (15290 - (36 800)
Net book value at 31 December . 12 496 16 729 R 7 580 ; 36 805

2011

As at 31 December 2012 and 2011 included in property, plant and equipment was fully depreciated office and computer equipment totaling RUB 9,638 thousand and
RUB 8,903 thousand, respectively.

Intangible assets include trademark, software, patents and licenses.

22 Other Assets

31 December 31 December

2012 2011
Other financlal assets
Settiements on conversion and term transactions 269 -
Receivables on other transactions 85 163
Total other financial assets 354 163
Other non-financlal assets
Advance payments 6617 6193
Taxes receivable, other than income tax 1071 5196
Total other assets 8042 11 552
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23 Due to banks and other financlal Institutions

31 December 31 Decomber
2012 2011
Term loans and deposits from other banks 900 761 1110062
Correspondent accounts and ovemight deposits of other banks 4218 4514
Totai due to banks and other financiai institutions 904 979 1114 676

A J
Borrowings on interbank market are caused by the Bank's cooperation with the state bank for development - Open Joint Stock Company “Russian Bank for Small and

Medium Enterprises Support® - on the program for support of small and medium business. As at 31 December 2012 and 2011 loans to customers issued under this
program amounted to RUB 826,784 thousand and RUB 1,041,085 thousand, respectively (Note 19).

As at 31 December 2012 and 2011 the funds borrowed from banks inciude a loan obtained from Open Joint Stock Company “Russian Bank for Small and Medium

Enterprises Support* of RUB 900,761 thousand and RUB 1,080,059 thousand, colateralized by pledge of loans to the customers in the amount of RUB 826,784 thousand
and RUB 1,336,085 thousand, respectively (Note 19).

24 Customer accounts

31 December 31 December
2012 2011
Commercial entities ¥ 1622 968 2 397 302
Current and settlement accounts 1215 146 1751368
Term deposits 407 822 645 934
Individuals 3 523 856 3364 799
Term deposits 2 967 398 3102515
Current accounts and demand deposits 533 049 262 284
Letters of credit payable 23 409 -
Total customer accounts 5146 824 5762101
The breakdown of customer accounts by economy sectors was as follows:
31 December % 31 December %
2012 2011
Trade 398 331 7.7% 306 001 5.3%
Financial activities 345 355 6.7% 68 458 1.2%
Chemical 203 764 4.0% 406 881 7.1%
Science and education 188 749 3.7% 27 862 0.5%
Real estate operations 122 935 2.4% 253 233 4.4%
Services 96 006 1.9% 91100 1.6%
Construction 91745 1.8% 62 341 1.1%
Transport and communication 46 816 0.9% 904 815 15.7%
Health 42088 0.8% 74775 1.3%
Cuilture and art 34721 0.7% 45175 0.8%
Information and computing services 23 251 0.5% 15 884 0.3%
Hotels and restaurants 13 389 0.3% 10 500 0.2%
Machinery construction 3239 0.1% 26 309 0.5%
Other production 2807 0.1% 1920 0.0%
Equipment manufacturing 2316 0.0% 68 924 1.2%
Tourism 1715 0.0% 3440 0.1%
Electric power engineering 1309 0.0% 1759 0.0%
Agriculture 1017 0.0% 1193 0.0%
Light industry 1012 0.0% 4727 0.1%
Food industry 925 0.0% 614 0.0%
Printing industry 707 0.0% 1202 0.0%
Other 653 0.0% 5§70 0.0%
Metallurgy (ore extraction) 95 0.0% 8 059 0.1%
Metallurgical production 23 0.0% 11 560 0.2%
Individuals 3523856  68.5% 3364 799 58.4%
Total customer accounts 5146 824 5762101

As at 31 December 2011 customer accounts of commercial entities of RUB 869,295 thousand, which constituted 15,1% of the total amount of the customer accounts,
were due to 1 customer, which represents significant concentration.
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25 Debt securities Issued

31 December 31 December

2012 2011

Discounted promissory notes 1500 066 1380099
Settiement promissory notes - 71319
1500 066 1451418

Total debt securities issued

As at 31 December 2012 and 2011 thg Bank issued debt securities were purchased by the client - a commercial entity of RUB 771,960 thousand and RUB 389,924
thousand, respectively. Concentration of 10% and 4,6% of the aggregate amount of the Bank's liabiiities and the current balance sheet date is significant,

26 Other liabllities

31 December 31 December
2012 2011
Other financial llabllitles:
Payabie to empioyees 24 030 29775
Settiements on conversion and term transactions - 5548
Other liabilities ) 4490 3536
Total other financial liabilities 28 520 38 859
Other non-financlal liabfiitles
Taxes payable other than income tax 4673 5003
Totai other Hablilties 33193 43 862
27 Subordinated debt
Currency Maturity year Interest rate % 3 Decer;: 19; 3 Decer;\:;r
Subordinated ioan from LLC "Polikom-Vest" RUB 2019 8 148 727 148 500
TOTAL 148 727 148 500

in the event of bankruptcy or iiquidation of the Bank, repayment of this debt is subordinate to the repayment of the Bank's liabilities to alj other creditors.
28 Share capitai

As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, the Bank's share capital was as follows:

31 December 2012 31 December 2011
Amount Par value of Amount
Number of  Par value of share,  Par value, adjusted for Number of share, RUB Par value, adjusted for
shares RUB th RUB th: d Infl 3 shares thou;an d RUB thousand inflation,
RUB thousand RUB thousand
Ordinary shares 555 500 1 555 500 679 277 555 500 1 555 500 679277
Total share 555 500 555 500 679 277 555 500 565 500 679 277
Capital

As of 31 December 2012 and 2011 the Bank's announced share capital consisted of 749,600 ordinary shares with a nominal value of RUB 1,000 each. As of 31
December 2012 and 2011 the Bank's issued and fuily paid share capital consisted of 555,500 ordinary shares with a nominal value of RUB 1,000 each. All shares are
ranked and have the right to one vote, Share premium represents the excess of contributions received over the nominal value of shares issued.

During the period ended 31 December 2012 the Bank announced and paid dividends based on the resuits of its operations in 2011 of RUB 111,100 thousand.

During the period ended 31 December 2011 the Bank announced and paid dividends based on the resuits of its operations during prior years of RUB 122,210 thousand.

represented by a reserve fund, which is created, as required by the statutory reguiations, in respect of general banking risks, including future iosses and other unforeseen
risks or contingencies. The reserve has been created in accordance with the Bank’s statute that provides for the creation of a reserve for these purposes of not less than

29 Financlai commitments and contingencies

In the normal course of business, the Bank is a party to financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk in order to meet the needs of its customers. These instruments,
involving varying degrees of credit risk, are not reflected in the statement of financial position.

The Bank’s maximum exposure to credit loss under contingent liabilities and commitments to extend credit, in the event of non-performance by the other party where ail
counterclaims, collateral or security prove valueless, is represented by the contractual amounts of those instruments,

The Bank applies the same credit policy to the contingent liabilities as it does to the balance sheet financiai instruments.

The risk-weighted amount is obtained by applying a credit conversion factor and counterparty risk weightings according to principles employed by the Basle Committee
on Banking Supervision.




™

As of 31 December 2012 and 201 1, the nominal or contract amounts and risk-weighted amounts were:

31 December 2012 31 December 2011
Nominal amount Rls:;::"il:wd Nominal amount Rls:;'\::l'il:ted
Commitments on loans and unused credit lines 965 087 85153 225079 5187
Guarantees issueq N 344 795 344 795 143 196 143 196
Letters of credit ang other transaction related contingent obligations 23 409 23 409 - -
Total loan commitments 1333 291 453 357 368 275 148 383

Operatlng lease commitments - Buildings operating leases that the Bank had entered into as at 31 December 2012 and 2011 are cancellable,

Fiduclary activities — The Bank provides depositary services to its customers, As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, the Bank had customer securities totaling 60,512,473
items and 94,874,906 items, respectively, in its nhominal holder accounts. 1

Legal Proceedings — From time to time and in the normal course of business, claims against the Bank are received from customers and counterparties, Management is
of the opinion that no material losses will be incurred and, accordingly, no provision has been made in these financiaj statements,

take decisions based on their own arbitrary interpretation of these provisions, In practice, the RF tax authorities often interpret the tax legislation not in favor of the
taxpayers, who have to resort to court Proceeding to defend their position against the tax authorities. It shoulq be noted that the RF tax authorities can use the
Clarifications issyed by the judicial bodies that have introduced the concept of “unjustifieq tax benefit*, “primary commercial goal of transaction” and the criteria of

Such uncertainty could, in particular, be aftributed to tax treatment of financial instmments/derivatives and determination of market price of transactions for transfer
pricing purposes. It could also lead to temporary taxable differences occurred due to loan impairment provisions and income tax liabilities being treated by the tax
authorities as understatement of the tax base. The management of the Bank is confident that applicable taxes have all been accrued and, consequently, creation of
respective provisions is not required.

Generally, taxpayers are subject to tax audits with respect to the three calendar years preceding the year of the audit. However, completed audits do not exclude the
possibility of subsequent additional tax aydits performed by upper-level tax inspectorates reviewing the results of tax audits of thejr subordinate tax inspectorates, Also
according to the clarification of the Russian Constitutional Court the statute of limitation for tax liabilities may be extended beyond the three year term set forth in the tax
legislation, if a court determines that the taxpayers has obstructed or hindered a tax inspection,

Russia's transfer pricing legislation was amended effective 1 January 2012 . The above amendments infroduce additional requirements with respect to the accounting for
and documenting fransactions. Under the amended legislation Russian tax authorities can impose additional taxes with respect to a number of transactions, including
those with related parties, if they believe that the transaction price differs from the market price. In view of the absence of application practice for the new transfer pricing
rules and the uncertainty of wording of a number of their provisions, the likelihood of chalienge by tax authorities of the Banks position with respect to application of those
rules cannot be assessed reliably.

Economic situation = Although in recent years there has been a general improvement in &conomic conditions in the Russian Federation, it continues to display certain
characteristics of an emerging market. These include, but are not limited to, currency controls and convertibility restrictions, relatively high level of inflation and
continuing efforts by the government to impiement structural reforms.

As aresult laws and regulations affecting businesses continue to change rapidly. Tax, currency and customs legislation within Russia is subject to varying interpretations,
and other legal and fiscal impediments contribute to the challenges facegd by entities currently operating in Russia, The future economic direction of the Russian
Federation is largely dependent upon the effectiveness of economic, financial and monetary measures undertaken by the Govemment, together with tax, legal,
regulatory, and political developments.

Operating environment Financial markets (both Russian ang global) are exposed to various risks including economic, political and social, and legal and legislative
risks. As has happened in the past, actual or perceived financial problems or an increase in the perceived risks could adversely affect the investment climate in Russia
and the country’s economy in general,

As a result, laws and regulations affecting businesses in the Russian Federation continue to change rapidly. Tax, currency and customs legislation within the RF is
subject to varying interpretatlons, and other legal and fiscal impediments contribute to the challenges faced by banks currently operating in the RF. The future economic
direction of Russia is largely dependent upon economic, fiscai and monetary Measures undertaken by the government, together with legal, reguiatory, and political
developments.

Year 2012 was characterized by continued economic growth and stabilization of global and Russian economies. However €conomic uncertainties remain. Adverse
changes arising from systemic risks in global financial systems, including any tightening of the credit environment or decline in the oil and gas prices could slow or disrupt
the Russian economy, adversely affect the Bank’s access to capital and cost of capital for the Bank and, more generally, its business, results of operations, financial
condition and prospects.

For the years endeg 31 December 2012 and 2011 inflation in Russia (according to the govemment's statistical data) amounted to 6.6% and 6.1%, respectively,

30 Related party transactions
Related parties or transactions with related parties, as defined by IAS 24 "Related Party Disclosures®, represent:

(a) Parties that directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries: control, or are controlled by, or are under common control with, the Bank (this includes parents,
subsidiaries and fellow Subsidiaries); have an interest in the Bank that gives then significant influence over the Bank; and that have joint control over the Bank;

(b) Associates — enterprises on which the Bank has significant influence and which is neither a subsidiary nor g joint venture of the investor;
(c) Joint ventures in which the Bank is 3 venturer;



(d) Members of key management personnel of the Bank or its parent;

(e) Close members of the family of any individuals referred to in (a) or (d);

(f) Parties that are entities controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by, or for which significant voting power in such entity resides with, directly or indirectly,

any individual referred to in (d) or (e);

(g) Post-employment benefit plans for the benefit of employees of the Bank, or of any entity that is a related party of the Bank.

In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the substance of the relationship, and not merely the legal form. The Bank had the

following transactions outstanding with related parties:

' 31 December 2012 31 December 2011
Total Total
Related party category as per Related party category as per
transactions the financial transactions the financial
statements caption statements caption

Loans to customers
key management personnel of the Bank 2433 969
other related parties 22512 21714
Total loans to customers 24 945 8 187 532 22683 8671145
Provision for impairment losses on loans to customers
key management personnel of the Bank (13) (5)
other related parties 37 (37)
IS:L;r:r\;lslon for impairment iosses on ioans to (50) (942 100) " (42) (955 719)
Customer accounts
entities with joint control or significant influence over the Bank (3 840) (83 388)
key management personnel of the Bank (87 120) (39610)
other related parties (196 427) (40 650)
Total customer accounts (287 387) (5 146 824) (163 648) (5762 101)

The following amounts arising due to transactions with related parties were included in the income statement for the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011:

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2012 31 December 2011
Total Total
Related party category as per Related party category as per
transactions the financial transactions the financial
statements caption statements caption
Interest income
entities with joint control or significant influence over the Bank 141 -
key management personnel of the Bank 215 359
other related parties 3472 1945
Total interest income 3828 1377716 2304 1237 596
Interest expense
entities with joint control or significant influence over the Bank (1 088) (8 800)
key management personnel of the Bank (3 025) (3 252)
other related parties (4 463) (1810)
Total interest expense (8 576) (551 473) (13 862) (552 789)
Provision for impairment losses on interest bearing assets
key management personnel of the Bank (8) 4)
other related parties - 1545
Total provislon for impairment losses on interest bearing @ (19 425) 1541 (243 228)
assets
Fee and commission income
entities with joint control or significant influence over the Bank 537 854
key management personnel of the Bank 574 454
other related parties 1501 762
Total fee and commission Income 2612 71797 2070 67 142
Dividends received
Bank's investments - 382
Totali dividends received - 1362 382 628
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Net gain/(loss) on financial assets avallable-for-sale

Bank's investments - 1485

Total net galn/(loss) on financlal assets avallable-for-sale - 7 220 1485 (1911)

Net gain on foreign exchange operations

entities with joint control or significant influence over the Bank 2063 1651

key management personnel of the Bank 544 726

other related parties ' 1461 1661

Total net galn on forelgn exchange operatlons 4068 118 747 4038 270 761

Operating expenses
entities with joint control or significant influence over the Bank

- (65)

key management personnel of the Bank (4 168) i (156)

other related parties (64 807) (68)

Total operating expenses (68 975) (663 596) (289) (645 475)
Key management personnel compensation: )

Payroll (97 597) (92 892)

Insurance contributions (10 888) (2 290)

Total key management personnel compensation (108 486) (467 829) (95 182) (469 365)

31 Falr value of financlal Instruments

Fair value is defined as the amount at which the financial instrument could be acquired in a current transaction between knowledgeable willing parties in an arm's length
transaction, other than in forced or liquidation sale. The estimates presented herein are not necessarily indicative of the amounts the Bank could realize in a market
exchange from the sale of its full holdings of a particular instrument,

Estimated fair value of the Bank's financial instruments approximates their canrying amount,

The following methods and significant assumptions have been applied to estimate the fair values of following financial instruments:

- Cash and balances with the CBR and mandatory reserve deposits with the CBR, due to the short term environment and availability restriction of these types of assets,
the camrying amount is assumed to be reasonable estimate of their fair vaiue.

- The estimated fair value of quoted trading securities and derivative financial instruments, comeprising financial assets at fair value through profit or loss category, is
determined based on quoted active market prices at the reporting date.

- The fair value of advances to banks provided during the period of one month to the reporting date is assumed to be fair value amount for them,

- The fair value of the loans to customers is estimated by application of market interest rates when the loans were originated with the year-end market rates offered on
similar deposits with the deduction of the provisions for credit losses from the calculated fair value amounts.

- The estimated fair value of promissory notes and bonds comprising investments available-for-sale category is determined based on the quoted market prices.
Investments in equity instruments, which do not have quoted market prices in an active market are Mmeasured at cost, as their fair value can not be measured reliably,

- Other financial assets and liabilities are mainly represented by short-term receivabies and payables, therefore the carrying amount is assumed to be reasonable
estimate of their fair value,

- The fair value of issued promissory notes is based on expected cash flows discounted using market interest rates.

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value based on the fair vaiue hierarchy. The
fair value levels reflect direct fair value measurements based on market data:

Leve! 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets.

Leve! 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than Qquoted prices inciuded within Leve! 1 that are observable in the market for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Leve! 3 fair value measurements are those derived from vaiuation techniques that include inputs for the asset that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

31 December 2012

Val tanhni %

Quoted prices in active Valuation techniques based 2 b =
market on observable market data information other t:::; observable market
(Level 1) (Level 2) {Level 3)
Financial assets at fair vaiue through profit or loss 569 720 - -
Financial assets available-for-sale 79 689 - -




F

~

=

31 December 2011

Valuation techniques incorporating

Quoted prices in actlve Valuation techniques based
market on observable market data information other than observable market
Level 1) {Level 2) data
{ (Level 3)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 489 991 - -
Financial assets available-for-sale: 221538 - -

There were no transfers betwedn Level 1, 2 and 3 during the period.

32 Regulatory matters

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Bank to maintain minimum amounts and ratios (provided in the table) of total
(8%) and tier 1 capital (4%) to risk weighted assets.

The ratio was calculated according to the principles employed by the Basel Committee.

As at 31 December 2012 the Bank’s total capital amount for capital adequacy purposes was RUB 2,001,841 thousand and tier 1 capital amount was RUB 1,846,419
thousand with ratios 22.53% and 20.78%, respectively.

As at 31 December 2011 the Bank’s total capital amount for capital adequacy purposes was RUB 1,820,240 thousand and tier 1 capital amount was RUB 1,682,714
thousand with ratios 19.48% and 18.01%, respectively.

As of 31 December 2012 and 2011 the Bank included in the computation of Total capital for Capital adequacy purposes the subordinated debt received, limited to 50% of
Tier 1 capital. In the event of bankruptcy or liquidation of the Bank, repayment of this debt is subordinate to the repayment of the Bank's liabilities to all other creditors.

33 Capital management
The Bank's capital is managed in order to comply with the capital adequacy requirements established by the Central Bank of the Russian Federation, ensure the Bank's
capability and maintain the amount of the capital meeting the recommendations of the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision as provided in New Base! Capital

Accord (Basel I).
The Bank also manages its capital to ensure that the Bank will be able to continue as a going concern while maximizing the retum to stakeholders through the

optimization of the debt and equity balance.

According to the requirements of the Central Bank of the Russian Federation the minimal capital adequacy rate comprises 10% of the amount of the risk-weighted assets
estimated according to Russian Accounting Standards. As at 31 December 2012 the Bank's capital adequacy rate comprised 17.54% (unaudited by ZAO Deloitte and

Touche CIS).

The capital structure of the Bank consists of debt, which includes subordinated debt disclosed in Note 27, and equity, comprising share capital, provisions and retained
eanings as disclosed in the statement of changes in equity.

The Management Board reviews the capital structure on a semi-annual basis. As part of this review, the Management Board considers the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital.

The Bank's overall capital risk management policy remains unchanged from 2011.

34 Risk management policles

Risk management is fundamental to the Bank's banking business. The main risks inherent to the Bank's operations are those related to:
* credit risk;

« liquidity risk;

» market risk;

» operational risk.

The risk management responsibilities in the Bank are distributed among the following managements bodies and structural entities:

- The Bank's Board of Directors defines the banking risk management strategy and policies; sets forth comprehensive banking risk limits; evaluates the effectiveness of
the Bank's activities on implementation of the approved banking risk management strategy and policies and on control of the risk level.

- The Management Board is responsible for the implementation of the banking risk management strategy and policy as approved by the Board of Directors. The
competence of the Management Board also includes the following: analyzing the quality of banking risk management, setting the limits for particular transactions of the
Bank and ensuring contro! over compliance, approval of intemal regulations as part of the general policy on risk management organization approved by the Board of
Directors, introducing restrictions to (imposing moratorium on) operations;

Within his competence, the Chairman of the Management Board: organizes and ensures effectiveness of the banking risk management system, including organization of
risk monitoring and measurement systems; organization of complete and reliable reporting on banking risk management; determines the Bank's organizational structure
(including authorities and responsibility of structural divisions and/or responsible persons) to ensure effective risk management; organizes activities to improve the skills
of the Bank's staff engaged in banking risk management;

The Bank's Credit Committee: performs assessment and management of risks the bank undertakes when granting loans, issuing guarantee, investing gin third party
promissory notes, purchasing receivables, providing funds against assignment of monetary claims; takes measures to minimize and reduce concentration of credit and
other banking risks (provision of loans to related borrowers, selected industries, regions, etc);

- The Bank's Asset and Liabilities Management Committee manages liquidity risk, interest risk, stock market risk and currency risk, as well as the Bank's balance sheet
structure.

- The Bank's Technological Committee ensures effectiveness of and decrease in the risk level of the Bank's activities through optimization, regulation and automation of
the current and planned business processes.

The Risk Analysis and Assessment Department ("RAAD") is the key structural unit charged with risk assessment and analysis. RAAD's competence includes the
following key matters: realization of banking risk management policy; risk assessment and monitoring on an ongoing basis; control over compliance with the acceptable
levels of banking risks; reporting identified risks to the Bank's management bodies; preparation of management reporting in accordance with stipulated risk management
procedures in respect of specific risks; development of proposals and measures to mitigate risks; participation in discussions of risk management quality with the
Management Board and the Board of Directors;
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The Bank's key structural division functions on banking risk mana
intemal documents; timely notification of RAAD on the factors affectin
procedures of the Bank in case of changes in the terms of bankin,
Bank's intermal documents regarding the structural division's activi

The Bank has set the tasks and objectives for the banking risk management system, and identifi

Credlt risk

The Bank is exposed to credit risk which is the risk that the Bank will incur losses if the debtor fails to discharge a contractual financial obligation to the Bank.

ed key stages and methods of banking risk management.

gement include: organizing control over the factors affecting banking risks according to the approved
g the risk level; control over implementation of appropriate changes into intemal documents and
g operation (transaction) performance; participation in the development of and proposing changes to the

Credit risk is managed in accordance with the established competencies by the Bank's Management Board, Credit Committee and Risk Analysis and Assessment

Department.

To mitigate credit risk ,the Bank reduces excessive concentration of assets by

are initiated by respective business units.

The analysis of the borrower's financial situation and the assessment of the credit risk level is carried out by the Risk Analysis and Assessment Department.

Limits are set by the Credit Committee or the Management Board (for financial institutions and issuers
employee (for small limits prescribed by the Bank's Credit Policy).

setting limits on counterparties and groups of related counterparties. Requests for limits

) or the Chairman of the Management Board or an authorized

Limits for borrowers and counterparties are set as requests are received and then monitored and revised on an‘ongoing basis. Limits of lending "against tumover” are

revised at least once a month.

Credit risk is assessed using methods set out in the Bank's intemal documents.

A counterparty financial analysis includes analysis of the borrower’s business, financial position, credit history,
The financial position of legal entity borrowers is analyzed on a quarterly basis, counterparty banks are m
analyzed on a quarterly basis according to a special technique.

nature of the financed transaction and purpose of the loan.
onitored monthly. The solvency of individual borrowers is

To reduce the level of credit risk the Bank accepts various types of security for loans (pledge, guarantees, sureties, etc.) The Bank evaluates security givers. The

security assessment is carried out by independent appraisals. The Bank requires the real estate, equipment and goods accepted as a collateral to be insured.

It is impossible to obtain pledge or guarantee on some loans. Such loans are continuously monitored.

the same credit policy to the contingent liabilities as it does to the balance
loans, using limits to mitigate the risk, and current monitoring.

MaxImum cred!t risk exposure

The Bank's maximum exposure to credit risk varies significantly and is dependent on the level of risks inherent in respective assets .

The following table presents the maximum exposure to credit risk of financial assets an

g specific credit standards. The Bank applies
sheet financial instruments, i.e. the one based on the procedures for approving the grant of

d contingent credit liabilities. For financial assets in the balance sheet, the

maximum exposure is equal to the carrying amount of those assets prior to any offset or collateral. For financial guarantees and other contingent liabilities the maximum

exposure to credit risk is the maximum amount the Bank would have to pay if the guarantee was called

on.

31 December 2012

on or in the case of commitments, if the loan amount was called

MaxImum cred!t risk exposure Collateral
Balances with the Central Bank of the Russian Federation 727 437 -
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 569 720 -
Due from banks and other financial institutions 705 977 -
Loans to customers 7245 432 (3 784 864)
Financial assets available-for-sale 79 689 -
Other financial assets 354 -
Commitments on loans and unused credit lines 965 087 -
Letters of credit to be paid 23 409 -
Guarantees issued 344 795 -

31 December 2011

Maximum cred!t risk exposure Collateral
Balances with the Central Bank of the Russian Federation 140 892 -
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 499 991 -
Due from banks and other financial institutions 1275237 -
Loans to customers 7715426 (3 404 355)
Financial assets available-for-sale 172715 -
Other financial assets 163 -
Commitments on loans and unused credit lines 225079 -
Guarantees issued 143 196 -
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Financial assets are graded according to the current credit rating they have been issued by an internationally regarded agency. The highest possible rating is AAA,
Investment grade financial assets have ratings from AAA to BBB. Financial assets which have ratings lower than BBB are classed as speculative grade.

As at 31 December 2012 and 2011 the balances with the CBR included RUB 727,437 thousand and RUB 140,892 thousand, respectively. The credit rating of the
Russian Federation according to the international rating agencies corresponded to investment level BBB.

The following table details credit ratings of financial assets held by the Bank that are neither past due nor impaired:

31 December 2012

. A BBB <BBB Not rated Total equity
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - 168 015 371484 30 221 569 720
Due from banks and other financial institutions 453 045 191 085 61552 295 705 977
Loans to customers - - - 2931675 2931675
Financial assets available-for-sale - - 79689 7585 87 274
Other financial assets - - - ) 354 354

31 December 2011

A BBB <BBB ' Not rated Total equlty
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - 170 179 299 256 30 556 499 991
Due from banks and other financial institutions 1192 237 8810 64 087 10 103 1275237
Loans to customers - - - 2089019 2089019
Financial assets available-for-sale - - 172715 56 408 229123
Other financial assets - - - 163 163

The Bank classifies loans to customers in the category of financial assets according to internal ratings:

Rating 1

Analysis of production, finance and business activities of the borrower and other borrower data, including data on external circumstances, indicate to the stability of the
production, positive net assets, profitability and solvency; there are no negative conditions (tendencies) that can affect the borrower's financial stability in the long term.
Such negative conditions (tendencies) include material decrease in the production growth rates, profitability ratios, material increase in payables and (or) receivables and
other circumstances that are not related to seasonal factors.

Ratlng 2

Analysis of production, finance and business activities of the borrower and (or) other borrower data indicate that there is no direct threats to the current financial position,
though there are negative circumstances (tendencies) in the borrower's activity that can cause financial difficulties in the foreseeable future (a year or less) if the borrower
fails to take measures to improve the situation.

Rating 3

Analysis of production, finance and business activities of the borrower and (or) other borrower data indicate that there are threatening negative circumstances
(tendencies) in the borrower's activities and they can cause insolvency of the borrower. Threating negative circumstances (tendencies) in the borrower's activity can
include: loss-making activity, negative or materially decreased net assets, material reduction of the production volume, substantial growth of payables and (or)
receivables,

As at 31 December 2012 and 2011 the interal rating assessment technique involves a point-based system based on the borrower's financial performance and other
factors.

The data on the ratings assigned by the Bank to the provided loans is given below:

31 December 2012 31 December 2011
Rating 1 1018377 1262729
Rating 2 5706 581 5674767
Rating 3 520 474 777 930
Total loans to customers 7245 432 7715 426

The banking industry is generally exposed to credit risk through its financial assets and contingent liabilities. The €exposure is monitored on a regular basis to ensure that
the credit limits and credit worthiness guidelines established by the Bank’s risk management policy are not breached.

Geographlcal concentration
The Bank has a country risk, i.e. the risk that the Bank may incur losses due to the failure of foreign counterparties (legal entities, individuals) to fulfill their obligations due

to economic, political or social changes, as well as due to the fact that currency of a monetary liability may be inaccessible to a counterparty due to specific provisions of
national legislation and for other country specific reasons (regardless of the financial position of this counterparty).

The Bank operates in the Russian Federation. The Bank's customer base the services to which generate income and resources is also located in Russia.

The Bank's foreign assets subject to country risk include loans issued to non-resident legal entities and individuals, as well as balances on correspondent accounts of
non-resident banks with the absolute majority of such non-residents located in jurisdictions with the best country rates according to classification of Export Credit
Agencies participating in the Agreement of Country Members of the Organization for Economic Cooperation and Development (“OECD") “On the basic principles of
provision and utilization of officially supported export credits”.
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Geographical analysis of the Bank’s assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2012 and 2011 is provided below:

31 December 2012

Other
RF OECD countries non-OECD Total
countries

FINANCIAL ASSETS
Cash ar]d balances with the Central Bank of the Russian 938 697 R R 0938 697
Federation %
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 568 720 - - 569 720
Due from banks and other financial institutions 244 659 461 298 20 705 977
Loans to customers 6 684 374 253 310 307 748 7245432
Financial assets available-for-sale 87 274 - - 87274
Other financial assets 354 -1 - 354
Total financlal assets 8525078 714 608 307 768 9 547 454
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Due to banks and other financial institutions 903 760 - 1219 904 979
Customer accounts 5095 891 41 651 9282 5146824
Debt securities issued 549 345 771960 178 761 1500 066
Other financial liabilities 28518 - 2 28 520
Subordinated debt 148 727 - - 148 727
Total financlal llabllitles 6726 241 813611 189 264 7729 116
Net position 1798 837 (99 003) 118 504

31 December 2011

Other
RF OECD countries non-OECD Total
countries

FINANCIAL ASSETS
r(-'::::ra?ir; balances with the Central Bank of the Russian 281833 R R 281 833
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 498 991 - - 499 991
Due from banks and other financial institutions 74 603 1200 505 129 1275237
Loans to customers 6 659 279 379 037 677 110 7715426
Financial assets available-for-sale 229123 - - 229123
Other financial assets 163 - - 163
Total financlal assets 7 744 992 1579 542 677 239 10001773
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Due to banks and other financial institutions 1114 567 - 9 1114 576
Customer accounts 5740671 12937 8493 5762101
Debt securities issued 869 996 389 924 181 498 1451418
Other financial liabilities 38 859 - - 38 859
Subordinated debt 148 500 - - 148 500
Total financlal llabllities 7912 593 402 861 200 000 8515454
Net position (167 601) 1176 681 477 239
Market risk

Market risk is a risk that the Bank may incur losses due to adverse changes in the value of trading financial instruments and derivatives of the Bank, as well as foreign
exchange rates and (or) precious metals rates. Therefore, market risks include stock market risk, currency risk and interest risks.

The main objective of market risk management is to minimize losses due to adverse changes in market prices of equity instruments; and to take measures to keep the
market risk at a level which would not threaten the Bank's financial stability and interests of its creditors and depositors.

Methods aimed at market risk mitigation include diversification; hedging of open positions; ongoing monitoring of investments; non-performance of operations with
unreasonably volatile positions; setting limits on financial instruments and securities issuers and control of compliance; setting stop-loss limits; setting limits on net
positions; assessment of risks in accordance with intemal documents developed on the basis of the Bank of Russia regulations; forecasting net currency positions values
in foreign currencies and precious metals and control of compliance with the limits; distribution of authorities in decision-making in the Bank's operations.
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Interest rate risk

Interest risk is a risk of financial losses resulting from adverse changes in the interest rates on the assets, liabilities, and off-balance sheet instruments of the Bank. The
objective of interest rate risk management is to maintain the risk accepted by the Bank at a level determined by the Bank in accordance with its strategic tasks. The
Bank's priority is to ensure maximum safety of assets and equity on the basis of decrease (elimination) of possible losses and lost profit on the Bank’s investments in
financial instruments. The Bank has established a list of financial instruments sensitive to interest rate fluctuations for the purpose of identification and assessment of

The table below provides a general analysis of the Bank's interest rate risk prepared on the basis of weighted average interest rates at year end.
*

31 December 2012 31 December 2011

RUB usD EUR RUB usD EUR
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Financial assets at fair value through profit or 10.28% R . 10,16% _ _
loss
Financial assets available-for-sale - 8,25% - ] - 9,65% -
Due from banks and other financial 467% 0,02% 0,10% 3,00% 0,50% 0,25%
institutions
Loans to customers 14,00% 12,62% 13,63% 14,78% 13,26% 14,77%
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Due to banks and other financial institutions 7.69% - - 8,18% - -
Customer accounts 8,84% 7,69% 5,89% 8,73% 7.65% 6,10%
Debt securities issued 7.47% 10,57% 10,75% 8,18% 9,42% 12,42%

The following table presents a sensitivity analysis of interest rate risk, which has been determined based on “reasonably possible changes in the risk variable”. The leve!
of these changes is determined by management and is contained within the risk reports provided to key management personnel.

31 December 2012 31 December 2011
Interest rate Interest rate Interest rate Interest rate
+3% -3% +2% -2%
Impact on profit before tax:
FINANCIAL ASSETS
lFc:gsanclal assets at fair value through profit or 17 092 (17 092) 10 000 (10 000)
Due from banks and other financial
institutions 17 696 (17 696) 267 (267)
Loans to customers 217 363 (217 363) 154 309 (154 309)
Financial assets available-for-sale 2391 (2 391) 3454 (3 454)
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Due to banks and other financial institutions (27 023) 27023 (22 201) 22 201
Customer accounts (101 257) 101 257 (74 970) 74 970
Debt securities issued (45 002) 45 002 (27 602) 27 602
Net Impact on profit before tax 81 260 (81 260) 43 257 (43 257)
. Interest rate Interest rate Interest rate Interest rate
Impact on equity: +3% 3% +2% 2%
FINANCIAL ASSETS
::n::ncnal assets at fair value through profit or 13673 (13673) 8000 (8 000)
Due from banks and other financial
institutions 14 157 (14 157) 214 (214)
Loans to customers 173 890 (173 890) 123 447 (123 447)
Financial assets availabie-for-sale 1913 (1913) 2763 (2 763)
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Due to banks and other financial institutions (21 618) 21618 (17 761) 17 761
Customer accounts (81 005) 81 005 (59 976) 59 976
Debt securities issued (36 002) 36 002 (22 082) 22 082

Net Impact on equity 65008 (65 008) 34 606 (34 606)




Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk of l0ss0a dug 19 adverge change of foroign oxchango and (or) precious metals rates on the Bank's open positions in foreign currencies and (o

Precious metals. The objoctivas of awrrengy rlgk managemeont ingude minimizing the Bank's iosses when building assets and liabilities with the use of foreign currencies
preventing incompliance with the Russian Qurrengy laglolation ang forelgn currency contro) regulations when conducting foreign currency operations and performin,
foreign currency contro! agent functionp

The main methods of curroncy rigk managomen! ugod by the Bank Include: caleulatlon of net currency position values and compliance with the established limits; limiting

of operations with Instrumentg denominaled in a forelgn curroncy and precious metals; !orecastmg of rates; hedging; diversiﬁcaﬁon; Insurance (selection by the Bank of

The Treasury Depam,ponl of tho Bank porforma dally monltoring of the Bank's open Currency iti
compliance with these requiromonts In monitorad by the Risk Analys|s and Assessment Department,

As at 31 December 2012 the Bank's currency posiions were as follows:

RUB usb
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Cash and balances with the Contral Bank of
the Russian Federation 779192 122171 37334 - - 938 697
ll;i:sant:ial assels at falr valye through profit or 569 720 _ _ . R 569 720

3

Due from banks and other financiaj
institutions 218 605 423 064 64 287 - 21 705 977
Loans to Customers 4488 141 2246 832 510 459 - - 7245432
Financial assets available-for-sale 7 585 79 689 - - - 87 274

Other financia/ assets 354 - - 354

Total financial assets 6 063 597 2871756 21 9547 454
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Due to banks ang other financial institutions 904 935 28 16 - - 904 979
Customer accounts 2576 369 2175 786 386 646 8015 8 5146 824
Debt securitigs issued 492 641 935 666 71759 - - 1500 066
Other financia| liabilities 28 520 - - - - 28 520

148 727

Subordinateg debt 148 727

Total financjaj llabllities 4151 192 3111480 458 421 8 7729 116

Open position 1912 405 (239 724) 153 659 (8 015) 13

RUB uUsp EUR Gold Other currency Total
Liability on Spot deals (91 101) (121 491) - - (212 592)
Assets on Spot deals 121 491 91101 - - - 212 592

Net position on derivative forward and 30 390 (30 390) - - -
Spot transactions

TOTAL OPEN POSsITION 153 659 (8 015) 13

EUR Gold Other currency Total
FINANCIAL ASSETS

Cash and balances with the Central Ban of

the Russian Fa deration 186 319 27 202 68 312 - - 281833
'l;l:sancnal assets at fair vajye through profit or 499 991 . . _ _ 499 991
Due from banks and other financial

institutions 45 601 1206 030 23 477 - 129 1275237
Loans to customers 4920 100 2179 133 616 193 - - 7715426
Financial assets available-for-sale 56 408 172715 - - - 229 123

Other financia) assets 163 - - 163

Total financial assets 5708 582 3 585 080 707 982 - 129 10001 773

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Due to banks and other financia) institutions 1114530 29 17 - - 1114 576
Customer accounts 2451671 2723624 578 727 8071 8 5762101
Debt securities issued 233 264 1109 282 108 862 - - 1451418
Other financial liabilities 38 856 3 - - - 38 859

Subordinated debt 148 500 - - - 148 500
Total financjaj llabllities 3 986 821 3832 948 687 606 8 8515454
Open position 1721761 (247 868) 20376 (8071) 121




Currency risk sensitivity

The following tabje details the Bank’s sensitivity to an increase ang decrease in the USD and the EUR exchange rates against the RUB. As at 31 December 2012, the
ranges from +79 o -5% for USD and from +4% o -4% for EUR represent the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key Mmanagement

31 December 2012 31 Decembeor 2011
RUB/USD RUB/USD RUB/USD RUB/USD
+7% -5% -2% -16%
Impact on profit before tax 15942 (14 225) 16 229 13910
Impact on equity 12,754 (11 380) 12983 11128
RUB/EUR RUB/EUR RUB/EUR RUB/EUR
+4% 4% -2% -11%
Impact on profit before tax ' 224 (205) 186 168
Impact on equity 179 (164) 149 134

Limitations of sensitivity analysis

assumptions ang other factors, jt should also pe noted that these sensitivities are non-linear, and larger or smaller impacts should not be interpolated or extrapolateq
from these results,

Other limitations in the above sensitivity analyzes include the use of hypothetical market movements to demonstrate potential risk that only represent the Bank’s view of
possible near-term market changes that cannot be predicted with any certainty; ang the assumption that ay interest rates move in an identicaj fashion,

Stock market risk

The table below represents an analysis of sensitivity to price risk based on the balance sheet position for investments in securities at the reporting date.
If equity prices had been higher/lower-
31 December 2012 31 December 2011

Increase by 5% Decrease by 5% Increase by 5% Decrease by 5%

Impact on oquity

Financial assets available-for.sale 379 (379) 2820 (2 820)
Totaj Impact on equity 379 (379) 2820 (2 820)
quuidity risk

- the procedyre of Managing current (daily) Payment position (daily Payment position is Managed by the Treasury via transactions in the domestic and extema financial
Mmarkets with a view 10 maximize the efficiency of the use of the Bank's funds while complying with aj its obligations);
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An analysis of the balance sheat intares! rato risk and liquidity risk at 31 December 2012 is presented below:

On domand and 1to 3monthsto  From 12 months to More than Maturity Total

losa than 1 month 3 months 1 year § years § years undefined
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Financial assets at fair valuo 568 720 N - . - . 569 720
through profit or loss
Due from banks and other 589 865 - - - - - 589 865
financial institutions
Loans to customers . 1018 125 798 100 3524 772 1774774 129 661 . 7 245 432
Financial assets avallable-for- . _ . 79 689 . N 79 689
sale
:::"e'tsi"'e'e“ bearing financial 2177710 798100 3524772 1854 463 129 661 . 8 484 706
Cash and balances with the
Central Bank of the Russian 841 543 - - - - 97 154 938 697
Federation
Due from banks and other
financial institutions 116112 116112
Financial assets available-for- _ R _ 7585 _ _ 7585
sale
Other financial assets 354 - - - - - 354
Tota! financlal assets 3135719 798 100 3524772 1862048 129 661 97 154 9 547 454
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Due to banks and other financial 13151 32177 414734 290 699 150 000 - 900 761
institutions
Customer accounts 470 493 679 648 1779 082 438 209 7788 - 3375220
Debt securitles issued . 64 746 671272 764 048 - - 1 500 066
Subordinated debt - - 227 - 148 500 - 148 727
;lr:;'"'l’;':’ ost bearing financial 483644 776 571 2865315 1492 956 306 288 . 5924774
Due to banks and other financial
institutions 4218 N B - - ° 4218
Customer accounts 1771604 - - - - - 1771604
Other financial liabilities 25 243 - 3277 - - - 28 520
Total financlal llabllities 2284709 776 571 2 868 592 1492 956 306 288 - 7729116
Liquidity gap on financial assets
and liabilities 851010 21529 656 180 369 092 (176 627) 97 154
Interest sensitivity gap on
financial assets and fiabilities 1694 066 21529 659 457 361 507 (176 627) -
Cumuiative interest sensitivity
gap on financial assets and 1694 066 1715595 2375052 2736 559 2559932 2 559 932
liabilities
Cumulative interest sensitivity
gap as a percentage of total 18% 18% 25% 29% 27% 27%
assets
An analysis of the balance sheet interest rate risk and liquidity risk at 31 December 2011 is presented below:

On demand and 1to 3monthsto  From 12 months to More than Maturity Total

less than 1 month 3 months 1year Syears S years undefined o
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 499 991 N . B - ) 499 991
Due from banks and other
financial institutions 13372 - B N - ° 13372
Loans to customers 439523 1231 948 2640520 3224 412 179 023 - 7715426
::::ncnal assets available-for- R 67553 i} 105 162 i R 172715
::::“"’ est bearing financlal 952886 1209501 2640520 3329574 179023 - 8401 504
Cash and balances with the
Central Bank of the Russian 195 591 - - - - 86 242 281 833
Federation
Due from banks and other
financial institutions 1261865 - - - - - 1261865
Financial assets available-for- _ ~ 48823 7585 : . 56 408
sale
Other financial assets 163 - - - - - 163
Total financlal assets 2410 505 1299 501 2689343 3337159 179 023 86 242 10 001 773
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FINANCIAL LIABILITIED

Due to banks and olher financial 30003 26321 119 407 884 331 50 000 - 1110 062
institutions

Customer accounts 162923 834773 2614 304 130 947 5537 - 3748 484
Debt securities lsgugd 25882 777 356 576 861 - - - 1380 099
Subordinated debt - - - - 148 500 - 148 500
Total Interest bearing financlal 218808 1638450 3310572 1015278 204 037 - 6 387 145
Habilitles

Due to banks and othor financlal 4514 . _ _ N . 4514
institutions

Customer accounts 2013617 - - - - - 2013617
Debt securities issued 71319 - - - - - 71319
Other financial liabilities 35812 - 3047 - - - 38 859
Total financlal labliitles 2344 070 1638 450 3313619 1015278 204 037 - 8515 454
Liquidity gap on financial assets 66435 (338 949) (624 276) 2321881 (25 014) 86 242

and liabilities

Interest sensitivity gap on .

financial assets and liabilities 734 078 (338 949) (670 052) 2314 296 (25 014)

Cumulative interest sensitivity

gap on financial assets and 734078 395 129 (274 923) 2039373 2014 359 2014 359

liabilities

Cumulative interest sensitivity

gap as a percentage of total 7% 4% -3% 20% 20% 20%

assets

Term deposits of individuals are presented on the basls of contractual maturities. However, such deposits may be withdrawn by customers on demand,

Long-term credits and overdraft facliities are generally not available in Russia. However, in the Russian marketplace many short-term loans are granted with the
expectation of renewing the loans at maturity. As such, the ultimate maturity of assets may be different from the analysis presented above.

The foliowing table presents an allocation of undiscounted cash flows of the Bank's financial liabiiities (both interest and principal cash flows) and the Bank's
unrecognized credit commitments on the basis of their earliest possible contractuai maturity as at 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011. The total nominal amount
of cash outflows presented in the table represents undiscounted contractual cash flows on financial liabilities or contingent commitments. The cash flows expected by the
Bank from these financial liabilities and unrecognized credit commitments may differ from the analysis beiow:

T ey

On demand and 1to 3 months to From 1 year to More than Total as at

less than 1 month 3 months 1year Syears S years 31 December 2012
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Due to banks and other financial
institutions 13 151 48 696 446 910 367 490 1585 257 1031504
Customer accounts 471 807 688 146 1882 244 489 406 15 109 3 546 712
Debt securities issued - 65 364 710 098 942 835 - 1718 297
Subordinated debt - - 12107 47 520 172 097 231724
,T:;ia,:t'i:’:’ est bearing financial 484 958 802206 3051359 1847 251 342 463 6 528 237
Due to banks and other financial
institutions 4218 - ° ° - 4218
Customer accounts 1771603 - - - - 1771603
Other financial liabiiities 25243 - 3277 - - 28 520
Total financial labilities 2286 022 802 206 3054 636 1847 251 342 463 8332578
Loan related commitments 13 110 60 885 1075790 183 506 - 1333 291

On demand and 1to 3 months to From 1 year to More than Total as at

less than 1 month 3 months 1 year 5 years Syears 31 December 2011
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Due to banks and other financiai
institutions 30036 50 171 191 527 977 023 54 876 1303 633
Customer accounts 163 337 845 830 2775970 148 846 11353 3945336
Debt securities issued 25 966 789 928 615 267 - - 1431 161
Subordinated debt - - 11880 47 520 184 010 243 410
;:;‘i’::t'i:’:'es’ bearing financial 219339 1685920 3594644 1173 389 250 239 6923 540
Due to banks and other financial
institutions 4514 ) N ° ° 4514
Customer accounts 2013617 - - - - 2013617
Debt securities issued 71319 - - - - 71319
Other financial liabilities 35812 - 3047 - - 38 859
Total financlal llabliities 2344 601 1685 929 3 597 691 1173 389 250 239 9051849
Contingent llabliltles 16 244 104 048 219754 28 229 - 368 275




Operational risk

Operational risk Is connocted with the possibiiity of loss resuiting from the fact that the Bank's intemal rules and procedures for banking and other transactions are
inadequate to tho nature and 8¢opo of Its business and/or the legislative requirements; from failure by the Bank’s employees or other persons to comply with such intemal
rules and proceduros (through unintentional or deliberate action, or omission); from inadequacy/insufﬁciency of the operational features/characteristics of informational,
technical and other Ssystoms used by the Bank and/or their failures/breakdowns; and from extemal impacts.

The Bank regularly monltors and 08sesses operational risk. As part of operational risk management system, the Bank identifies and assesses operational risk with regard
to ail current oporalions, banking products, processes and systems. New operations, banking products, processes and technologies are checked for operational risk

exposure,
The main method of miligatiorf¥for the operational risk is the development of the organizational structure of the Bank, intemal rules and procedures for banking and other
- transactions, A spocioi focus Is placed on compliance with the principle of the segregation of powers, procedures of approval (agreement), accountability for and control
over banking oporations and other transactions.
. The Bank uses the following methods to mitigate the operational risk:
- day-to-day control over the compliance with the limits for operations and control over distribution of authorities when performing banking transactions exceeding the
— established limits,
- regular reconclllations between the data received from internal accounting for transactions and accounting and depositary accounting data;
- segregation of access rights to information and other resources;
b - provision of personalized access to the Bank's information resources for the employees by using unique personal identification code and confidential passwords;
- control over compliance with the document flow rules;
e - entering into contracts providing for full financial liability;
- property insurance.
ok To reduce the probability of losses arising from computer system failures the following measures are taken:
- automatic information duplication and back up;
- émergency action plans and disaster recovery plans are developed and updated;
b - |

- drills are held to train the steps to be taken in case of breakdown of different automated systems.

A special focus is placed on technological risks and risks associated with the implementation of new technologies within the risk management framework. For this

- purpose, project solutions and quality of their implementation, organization of technological processes, information flows and management processes, vulnerability to
technological and technical risks are examined and assessed.

N 3 The Bank assesses operational risk leve] using basic indicator approach. The Bank performs data collection with regard to operational risks and losses, has created
intemal data base on operational losses, as well as regularly monitors its operational risks and materiai exposure to loss per types of operational risk and business lines.
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